
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




 


 


 


CITY OF STOUGHTON     


207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589     


(608) 873-6677 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 


 


To: Caree Kovacevich, Senior Project Manager, Army Corp of Engineers 


From: Dan Glynn, Director of Parks & Recreation, City of Stoughton 


Date: October 2, 2022 


Re: Stoughton River Park Public Comment Response  


 


Project History 


The Yahara River Park project is the creation of a paddler’s park in Stoughton by modifying the existing 
dam. This will create a south channel with three drop structures, one drop structure downstream of 
Fourth Street, and an adjustable wave feature for river surfing and whitewater paddling. The south 
channel is designed to be usable by paddlers of all skill levels and will create navigability for paddlers in 
the river that currently does not exist. The south channel will connect the two sections of river which 
will allow fish passage. The adjustable wave feature allows the City to control the shape of the wave. 
Each paddling sport has a preferred wave shape and the adjustability will allow the City to control this. 
The final feature is the inclusion of a pneumatic gate upstream of the adjustable wave. It was a long 
arduous process to get to this point which is highlighted below.  


The Yahara River Park project started in 2017 when a community member visited a paddler’s park in 
Iowa and shared the idea of having one in Stoughton with the City. The community member knew that it 
was a goal of the City’s to improve recreational use of the river and saw how it transformed the 
community in Iowa. City staff from the Parks & Recreation Department started vetting the idea of having 
a paddler’s park in Stoughton. The vetting process included talking with senior Wisconsin Department of 
Natural Resources staff, talking to leaders from communities who have a paddler’s park, talking to 
several engineering consulting firms that build paddler’s parks, and talking to river restoration 
consultants. The process also included looking at recreational trends at the regional, state, and national 
levels, construction and operational costs, and economic benefits. The data overwhelming supported 
moving forward with the project. At this point, the City funded a conceptual plan design and selected 
Recreation Engineering and Planning (REP) from Boulder, CO. REP was selected due to their experience 
and expertise. REP has been involved in some of the most successful parks in the country including Argo 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





Cascades in Ann Arbor, MI, Salida Whitewater Park in Salida, CO, and the Truckee River Whitewater Park 
in Reno, NV.  


The conceptual plan was developed from February 2018 to April 2018. REP presented two options to 
City staff on how the design could be approached: with the Fourth Street Dam and without the Fourth 
Street Dam. City staff decided at that time to move forward with a design with the Fourth Street Dam. 
The reasoning behind the decision is that it would need to be a non-staff decision to have a design 
without the dam. The conceptual plan stage culminated in a public presentation at the Stoughton Opera 
House in April 2018. 200 to 250 people attended the public presentation which was well received. 
Interest around the project continued to build. City staff was interviewed by Channel 3 news and the 
Wisconsin State Journal wrote an article that was on its front page. A steering committee for the project 
was formed over the course of the summer and started meeting in September 2018. The steering 
committee was tasked with providing support, guidance, and oversight of the process. This includes 
reviewing plans and technical data from professionals to make recommendations to the Parks & Rec 
committee and City Council. 


Over the next few months the steering committee hosted experts to gain as much information as they 
could. These included a dam safety engineer from the WDNR, an engineer from Dane County Land & 
Water Resources Department, Executive Director of the Wisconsin River Alliance, City of Janesville’s 
Public Works Director, and City of West Bend’s Director of Planning. They shared information ranging 
from dam natural resource impacts, river restoration, dam safety issues, managing water levels on the 
Yahara Chain of Lakes, and the dam removal process. This information coupled with the near drowning 
of a paddler at the Fourth Street Dam in August 2018, made it clear to steering committee members 
that the best choice was to move forward with a design without the dam.  The steering committee 
unanimously voted to recommend to the City’s Parks & Recreation Committee to move forward with a 
dam removal design and the City’s Parks & Recreation Committee also voted unanimously to move 
forward with a dam removal design.  


As REP started with a dam removal design, the WDNR was unsure if a design for the project would be 
permitted as a dam removal due to the state’s definition of a dam. They gave REP guidance on what 
would qualify as a dam removal. REP presented two design options at the July 15, 2019 Steering 
Committee Meeting. The first design option would likely qualify as a dam removal and subsequent 
WDNR’s Municipal Dam Program grant funds ($400,000). This design option included smaller riffles 
instead of drop structures and wouldn’t create a head. The result would likely be a significant loss of 
upstream water surface elevations. The other design option was to create a south novice channel and an 
adjustable wave where the Fourth Street Dam currently is. This design would provide better recreational 
benefit and be less impactful to upstream water surface elevations, but it would be less likely to qualify 
for the WDNR’s Municipal Dam Program grant. Again, the steering committee unanimously voted to 
recommend to the Parks & Recreation Committee to move forward with the design with the adjustable 
wave and south novice channel. The Parks & Recreation Committee also unanimously approved moving 
forward with the adjustable wave and south novice channel.  


The preliminary design progressed and a public meeting was held in the Performing Arts Center at 
Stoughton High School. The design was presented along with the preliminary hydraulic analysis. Roughly 
150 people attended and attendees were asked to write down their comments and questions. Letters 
were sent out to riparian property owners in the City leading up to the public meeting and they had the 







option to attend two separate meetings with City staff to discuss the project. 16 riparian property 
owners attended the two meetings with two property owners opposing the project. The City then 
started to hear concerns of riparian property owners upstream in the Town of Pleasant Springs. The City 
met privately to discuss their concerns which included water surface elevations impacts at the reach of 
the river north of County Road B. Other concerns identified would be water quality and wildlife impacts. 
City staff agreed to present the project and take questions at a special Town of Pleasant Springs meeting 
on March 23, 2020.   


The City made a concerted effort to address these concerns. The City refined the hydraulic modeling by 
surveying six cross sections of the river upstream of the Cooper’s Causeway railroad bridge during three 
different flows. The surveyed cross-sections were located at river locations publicly accessible by land 
(not requiring watercraft or crossing private property). The Steering Committee also invited the WDNR’s 
Area Wildlife Supervisor and Emily Stanley from the University of Wisconsin’s Limnology Department to 
speak to wildlife impacts and water quality impacts. The Steering Committee also had guests from 
communities in Iowa to discuss fishing and safety at their parks. Additionally, the City posted responses 
to questions and concerns on the project’s website.  


During this time the City applied for the WDNR’s Municipal Flood Control Grant Program. The City was 
successful in its grant application and was placed on the priority funding list for the grant program. 
However, WDNR staff was still unsure of the eligibility due to the design creating a head. After they 
reviewed the plans, they made a determination that the design at the time would be considered a dam 
and would be classified as a dam modification. A presentation at a Committee of the Whole meeting 
(entire City Council and open to the public) was given which detailed the progress to-date, the updated 
hydraulic analysis, and the determination that the design was not eligible for WDNR’s Municipal Dam 
Program grant. City Council voted 11-1 on November 9, 2021 to move forward with the final design and 
to forego the grant funding. 


While this has been going on there has been a concerted effort amongst some of the opponents of the 
project to spread mistruths. This included a petition that was posted online that had inaccurate costs, 
inaccurate information about flood protection, contamination, and misrepresented photos of what the 
river would look like.     


The City has been preparing for permitting and refining the design over the past 10 months. During this 
time, the Town of Pleasant Springs hired Emmons & Olvier Resources (EOR) to look at our design and 
hydraulic modeling. The City shared the information they requested and paid for REP to meet with EOR. 
Steve Gaffield from EOR commented during the meeting that there should be coordination between the 
township and county about weed harvesting during low flows since the aquatic vegetation plays a large 
role in water surface elevations. Mason Lacy also shared that they have looked at other possible ways to 
control water surface elevations, but they haven’t found a solution that is operable and cost effective. 
The City requested a copy of the EOR report and was sent the report the day of their meeting. The 
report confirms REP’s modeling, but it shows a worst case scenario which would normally only happen 
in the winter months when recreational use of the river is low.  


Recently the design has been refined to include a pneumatic gate upstream of the adjustable wave. The 
gate would direct water through the south novice channel providing navigability during all flow 
conditions. Another benefit is that it should help lessen the water surface elevation impacts during low 
flows. The hydraulic modeling for the gate is currently being worked on. The City did not want to do 







extensive modeling efforts until we had a coordination meeting with the WDNR to determine if it would 
be allowed. Once the final design is completed, we will submit it to the WDNR where they will approve 
the plan and issue a new water operating order based on the project. This does not require a public 
hearing, but we will have one to provide facts and assist in transparency.   


 


Water Surface Elevations  


There have been concerns with changes to upstream water surface elevations. To address these 
concerns, the City of Stoughton surveyed six different locations upstream of the Cooper’s Causeway 
railroad bridge during three separate water flows to refine the modeling. The surveyed cross-sections 
were located at river locations publicly accessible by land (not requiring watercraft or crossing private 
property). The City then held a Committee of the Whole meeting on August 24, 2021 to present the 
updated hydraulic modeling. The hydraulic modeling presented included the existing conditions, with 
proposed project, and with a full dam removal. Under median flows of 380 CFS and with summer 
conditions (in-river aquatic plant growth), the HEC-RAS modeling shows -0.3 feet at the widening north 
of County Road B.  The change in water surface elevations is less than a full dam removal project which 
the City had the opportunity to move forward with including grant funding that was secured. The video 
of the Committee of the Whole meeting and the water surface elevation water table can be found on 
the project’s website – www.stoughtonrec.com/riverpark.  


The hydraulic modeling changes with each design refinement. The latest changes to the design include a 
pneumatic gate upstream of the adjustable wave feature. This will send water through the south 
channel and provide navigability at all flows. The gate will also minimize water surface elevation impacts 
during low flows (250 cfs and below). We are currently working through the design and permitting 
process of adding the gate, and final hydraulic analysis of the upstream impacts have not been 
completed. Once the data is available, it will be made publicly available on the City’s website. 


 


Riparian Owner Piers 


Any exposed shoreline areas would be owned by the riparian owner. This question was brought to our 
attention by a riparian owner in January 2021 and we reached out to Wisconsin Department of Natural 
Resources (WDNR) staff. We were told that riparian owners would have the option to extend their piers, 
but would need to conform to the WDNR’s pier planner guidance that can be found here - link.  


 


Migratory Birds  


The project’s steering committee hosted Andy Paulios, Area Wildlife Supervisor, WDNR, on June 15, 
2020. He was asked about the wildlife in the Yahara River and its upper reaches if the river changed to a 
more riverine environment. He told the steering committee that the area is not considered an Important 
Bird Area (IBA) due to the surrounding wetlands and lakes, and size of the Yahara River. He said if there 
was a change to a riverine environment, it would not be considered good or bad. He also commented 
that the WDNR looks for impacts to rare and endangered species and that there are none in the Yahara 
River.  



http://www.stoughtonrec.com/riverpark

https://dnr.wi.gov/topic/waterways/factsheets/pier_planner_082012.pdf





 


Recreational Uses 


Recreational use in the Yahara River within the City of Stoughton is low and is limited by the current 
dam. The current dam creates poor water quality and blocks navigability. The need for river 
improvements for recreational use are highlighted in the City’s Comprehensive Plan, Comprehensive 
Outdoor Recreation Plan, Railroad Corridor Redevelopment Plan, and other plans that go back over 20 
years. Many of these plans have extensive public input that assist in developing goals and objectives. An 
example of this is Goal 1.2.7 of the City’s Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan. The goal is promote 
water recreation throughout the community. An objective within this goal are to utilize riverfront parks, 
Riverside Park and Mandt Park in this case, for potential water based recreational improvements.   


The project also aligns with national plans. The pandemic created a surge in new outdoor recreation 
participation. The Outdoor Industry Association developed a report titled 2021 Outdoor Industry 
Association New Outdoor Participant COVID and Beyond. The report looked at how to improve retention 
of new participants. The number one suggestion is to create more outdoor recreation opportunities 
close to home. The report specifically states creating paddle parks like this project as a suggested way to 
do this. 


The University of Wisconsin – Madison developed a case study in 2018 that examined potential 
economic impacts of the project. The study stated that there were over 100,000 people who canoe or 
kayak within a 30 minute drive of the project location and 280,000 within a 60 minute drive time. The 
study suggests that annual visitation of whitewater parks across the country average 15,000 visits per 
year and that with continual site improvements combined with targeted marketing and solid word-of 
mouth reviews, use is anticipated to grow in a like fashion to other comparable whitewater parks to 
attract increasingly large visitor numbers from farther reaches of its market boundaries.   


Additionally, the project’s steering committee has a member who has been an active participant in the 
annual Syttende Mai canoe race. He believes the canoe race will be enhanced with the project. Many 
communities with similar projects have festivals that are centered on river recreation. This includes the 
FIBArk Festival in Salida, CO and Reno River Festival in Reno, NV. The site could also be potentially used 
for smaller events like the ButterCup paddling events that are held in Wisconsin and Illinois.  


Angling opportunities will only be enhanced with the project. There is very little fishing activity taking 
place in the millpond, even with site improvements like an accessible fishing pier. This is due to the dam 
creating poor water quality. Much of the fishing activity within Stoughton is done downstream of the 
dam. The project will connect the two segments of the river and fish downstream of the dam will be 
able to reach spawning areas upstream. Dan Oele, WDNR Fisheries Biologist, stated the following in an 
email to the City: 


“From the conceptual drawings and what I’ve seen so far, the dam removal, and added pools 
should improve fish habitat on the whole but may experience fish species composition changes. 
For example, panfish and warmer water fish currently present below the dam might be replaced 
by cooler water fish that prefer moving water and depths like darters, walleyes, smallmouth 
bass (but I expect panfish to remain in the backwaters too). The free flowing river w dam 
removal will allow fish to move more freely and find those desired habitats.” 







It should be noted that the WDNR did not know how the project would be classified at the time of his 
comments, but the design is the same for all intents and purposes. His comments reflect what has 
happened in Charles City, IA where a similar project was completed. 
https://www.desmoinesregister.com/story/opinion/readers/2016/05/12/charles-city-fishing-better-than-
ever/84196644/ 


We believe that duck hunting will be unaffected by the project. Duck hunters will still have access to 
their hunting grounds and can use the river. Much of the equipment used today by hunters like jon 
boats and mud motors will be unaffected by the changes in the Fourth street dam.  


 


Property Values 


Based on our research, we believe property values near the Fourth Street dam will be enhanced due to 
the project, however no research has been conducted further upstream on property values and we can 
not ascertain if any changes in property values will occur due to the distance from the river-based 
amenities. The aforementioned University of Wisconsin – Madison case study stated that non-market 
economic benefits within this region could involve hedonic premiums placed on real estate values due 
to the presence of river-based amenities. These increased property values will provide capital 
appreciation for owners of land in Stoughton. Additionally, due to the similar outcome (creation of a 
free flowing river) between the River Park project and a full dam removal, we believe there will be a 
similar outcome to property values. The University of Wisconsin-Madison published a paper that used 
hedonic analysis to examine the impact of small dam removal on property values in South-central 
Wisconsin. Some of the dam removals used in the paper were in Dane County. The paper states: 


“If these properties retain their frontage, then the results indicate that at least in the long run 
(after the waterway gains the appearance of a “free-flowing” stream) there is no frontage-
specific significant change in property price, except for the increase associated with the 
expansion of the lot size.” 


The property owners in our case will retain their frontage. 
https://static1.squarespace.com/static/5617ffade4b0f733b489eab8/t/5dfa2e33ba6ef66e21f7db37/157
6676918459/stpap501.pdf  


 


DNR Water Level Operating Order 


The River Park will cause a change in the capability of the dam to control water levels upstream and will 
necessitate updates to the water level order for the dam. The WDNR will examine any potential impacts 
of a possible new water order as part of their review process. While not required by state law, the City 
intends to have a public informational hearing, using standard WDNR protocol, to present the final 
design for the park, the hydraulic modeling based on the final design, and take questions.  


 


Public Input to Date  



https://www.desmoinesregister.com/story/opinion/readers/2016/05/12/charles-city-fishing-better-than-ever/84196644/

https://www.desmoinesregister.com/story/opinion/readers/2016/05/12/charles-city-fishing-better-than-ever/84196644/

https://static1.squarespace.com/static/5617ffade4b0f733b489eab8/t/5dfa2e33ba6ef66e21f7db37/1576676918459/stpap501.pdf

https://static1.squarespace.com/static/5617ffade4b0f733b489eab8/t/5dfa2e33ba6ef66e21f7db37/1576676918459/stpap501.pdf





The River Park project has been a high profile project since the conceptual plan was presented to the 
public back in April 18, 2018. The City has provided factual information and solicited public input from 
project inception and is ongoing.  A webpage dedicated to the project was developed and maintained 
(www.stoughtonrec.com/riverpark), and as of September 22, 2022, there have been over 140 instances 
where the project has been discussed in public meetings, newspaper articles, TV interviews, etc.    


A steering committee was formed during the summer of 2018. The steering committee members 
consists of paddling enthusiasts, fishing enthusiast, biking enthusiasts, staff from Dane County Parks, 
staff from the Madison Sport Commission, Stoughton Redevelopment Area members, local business 
owners, and Stoughton City Council.  The steering committee meetings are open to the public and a 
public comment period was added to their meetings in March 2020 to solicit concerns. To address their 
concerns, the steering committee has hosted experts from the WDNR, University of Wisconsin – 
Madison Limnology Department, Wisconsin River Alliance, and other experts from Wisconsin and 
around the country that have undergone a project similar to the Yahara River Park project. 


In addition to the steering committee meetings, the City has presented and taken questions at public 
meetings with the Town of Pleasant Springs (3/23/2020) and Town of Dunkirk (3/9/2021). Downstream 
of the Stoughton Dam is a lake district and we have presented the project twice at their public meetings 
(8/15/2018 and 1/20/2021). We have also met privately with township and City riparian owners.  


As the design progressed and milestones were reached, a major public meeting ensued. These milestone 
meetings included: 


April 18, 2018 – Conceptual Plan Presentation at the Stoughton Opera House (200-250 people attended) 


January 29, 2020 – Preliminary Design Public Presentation at Stoughton High School (150 people 
attended) 


February 4, 2021 – City Committee of the Whole Meeting Progress Update (virtual meeting due to 
pandemic) 


August 24, 2021 – City Committee of the Whole Meeting Hydraulic Analysis (virtual meeting due to 
pandemic) 


 


Petition  


The City does not feel that the petition mentioned in the public comments is valid. The public has been 
misled and been provided false information to get signatures.  Below are some bullet points that outline 
the TRUE information about the project,  


• The Stoughton Dam does not provide flood protection.  
• The Stoughton Dam does not prevent contamination issues. In fact, dams trap sediment which is 


sometimes contaminated.  The contaminated sediment is from many sources, with some of the 
contamination is coming from the industrial sites upstream of the Yahara River and Chain of 
Lakes starting in Madison, which has slowly accumulated since the dam was built.  The project 
addresses contamination build-up caused by the dam.  



http://www.stoughtonrec.com/riverpark





• The cost for the River Park is much less than $7.6 million dollars. The cost estimate for the River 
Park is $2.2 million. The City was tentatively awarded $979,999 which will be finalized when the 
project is permitted. The City responsibility is roughly $1.2 million.  


• The photos misrepresent the river with the project. They come from when the dam was 
repaired in 2009. A coffer dam was erected around the dam and water was diverted entirely 
through the powerhouse. The engineer of record told the City it’s not representative of what the 
river will look like with the project.  


 


 


Millpond Contamination & River Restoration  


Interfluve submitted and the WDNR approved a sediment sampling plan in 2019. The sediment was then 
collected and sent to a lab for testing. The results of the sampling can be found here: 
https://stoughtonrec.com/s/StougtonDam_SedimentAssessmentReport_Dec2019_combined-ray6.pdf  


There was contamination found that will need to be remediated due to it exceeding WDNR standards 
for soils. The purpose of the remediation is to make it safe for humans including children. Strand 



https://stoughtonrec.com/s/StougtonDam_SedimentAssessmentReport_Dec2019_combined-ray6.pdf





Associates recently submitted the NR 718 Soil Management Plan to the WDNR for approval which 
includes armoring the bank and capping the contamination.  


 


Stoughton Dam Repair & Function  


The Stoughton Dam’s original purpose was to generate hydroelectric power to nearby industries. It was 
repaired in 2009 under the premise that it would generate hydroelectric power and it has not generated 
power since it was repaired due to it not being cost effective. The Stoughton Dam does not provide any 
flood protection. Additionally, the WDNR awarded the City $225,000 in a Municipal Flood Control Grant 
because the proposed Yahara River Park project creates additional flood storage.   


 


Emmons & Olivier Resources Study  


The Town of Pleasant Springs hired Emmons & Olivier Resources, Inc. (EOR) to review information on 
the River Park. EOR reviewed the design and hydraulic analysis completed by Recreation Engineering 
and Planning (REP) and summarized their review in a memo dated July 7, 2022. Their review concurred 
with the findings of REP’s hydraulic analysis on the upstream water surface impacts of the project. Their 
review describes the design considerations and the extent to which the design team has minimized the 
lowering of the upstream water surface. The amount of drop depends on the amount of flow in the 
river, with a greater decrease at low flows. It also depends on the season, due to the hydraulic 
roughness of aquatic vegetation. At the river widening upstream of County Road B during the growing 
season (summer), the modeled water surface decreases are 0.1ft at 650 cfs to 0.6 ft at 150 cfs. In Figure 
3 of their report, EOR shows the worst-case scenario that was modeled (150 cfs during winter 
conditions), on a cross-section with bathymetry from the FIS model (collected in 2012). EOR states that 
additional bathymetry would need to be collected to accurately map potential shoreline changes, yet 
they included potential shoreline change in Figure 3 for the worst-case scenario. 


EOR’s report does not take into account the addition of an adjustable pneumatic gate at the crest of the 
River Park. The gate will raise water levels upstream of the project during low flows (250 cfs and below). 
We are currently working through the design and permitting process of adding the gate, and final 
hydraulic analysis of the upstream impacts have not been completed. Preliminary hydraulic modeling 
shows the gate raising the water level 1.4ft in the mill pond just upstream of the Stoughton Dam at a 
flow of 250 cfs. The City of Stoughton and the design team are committed to reducing the impact of the 
project on water surface elevations upstream to the greatest extent possible, while still achieving the 
goals of the project, meeting floodplain requirements, and the Wisconsin DNR and US Army Corps 
permitting requirements. 


 


Dane County Dredging Project  


We met with John Reimer from Dane County early in the design stages for the River Park project. He 
communicated what their dredging project would entail and to direct any questions to their office. Since 
that meeting, we have been doing that since it is their request. The Yahara River Park project is its own 
separate project and needs to be judged based on its own objectives.  







 


Duration of Construction and Water Draw Down 


We expect the construction duration of the River Park to be less than 6 months. During construction of 
in-river portions of the project, the work area will need to be dewatered in phases, and water levels 
upstream of the project may fluctuate with construction activities. Drawdowns will be temporary and 
will be kept to the minimum as possible to facilitate construction. Construction is proposed to occur 
during the fall and winter months when there is less river recreation occurring. 


 


Loss of Wetlands 


It states in Exploring Dam Removal: A Decision-Making Guide that: 


“When a dam is removed, wetlands created by the dam’s impoundment may be transformed as 
the impoundment is drawn down. In many cases this loss of wetlands is countered by the re-
creation of wetlands associated with a restored riparian corridor.” 


The City believes that the creation of a free flowing river will produce naturally occurring wetlands and 
provide better habitat than what is currently provided by the Stoughton Fourth Street Dam, thus 
benefitting many native plant species, native fish species, migratory songbirds, waterfowl, and other 
bird species associates with rivers (e.g., herons, osprey, eagles, plovers, etc.).  


 


Historical Significance of the Stoughton Dam 


The Wisconsin Historical Society reviewed the Stoughton Fourth Street Dam and it is not eligible for 
listing in the State and National Registers of Historic Places. This is due to the numerous alterations done 
to the dam over the years (see attached letter).  


 


Water Quality & Blue-Green Algae 


Blue-green algae only grows where stagnant water is present. The Yahara River Park will lower the water 
surface elevations, eliminate the millpond, its stagnant water, and add structures in the water to create 
riffles and waves. In other words, it will create an environment that is not conducive to blue-green algae 
blooms. The beaches in Yahara Chain of Lakes in Madison are situated in areas of the lake where there is 
stagnant water.  


To address these concerns the steering committee invited Emily Stanley from the University of 
Wisconsin – Madison Limnology Department. Dr. Stanley is a world renowned expert on water quality. 
Dr. Stanley stated at the meeting that changing the situation from an impoundment to a riverine 
environment reduces the likelihood of algae blooms.   


An opponent of the project contacted the Division of Public Health of the Wisconsin Department of 
Health Services in 2021. They then forwarded the email to the WDNR where their concerns were 







addressed by Gina LaLiberte, Statewide Harmful Algal Bloom Coordinator & Applied Limnologist. This is 
what she said in her reply: 


“Again, I would like to reiterate that your photos did not depict blue-green algae accumulations 
and instead showed filamentous green algae and/or duckweed, neither of which are considered 
hazardous. 


I would also caution you against assuming that conditions in the river at Stoughton are 
equivalent to the conditions you see in the lakes upstream. Planktonic blooms that form high-
risk floating scums are more likely to occur on Lake Kegonsa when winds are calm, or if gentle 
winds push floating blue-green algae toward the downwind shore. Calm, stagnant conditions in 
the lake which are conducive to bloom growth and scum formation are very different from 
conditions in the river, where turbulence and flow prevent the accumulation of blue-green algae 
in high concentrations such as floating scums.” 


 


 











Public Information & Meetings List – Yahara River Park 


10/17/2017 - Parks & Recreation Committee Meeting 


11/21/2017 - Parks & Recreation Committee Meeting 


12/13/2017 – RDA Meeting  


12/19/2017 - Parks & Recreation Committee Meeting 


1/8/2018 - River & Trails Taskforce Meeting 


1/16/2018 - Parks & Recreation Committee Meeting 


2/12/2018 – Stoughton Conservation Club Meeting  


2/13/2018 – City Council Meeting  


2/14/2018 – RDA Meeting  


2/19/2018 – Lions Club Meeting  


2/20/2018 - Parks & Recreation Committee Meeting 


3/5/2018 - River & Trails Taskforce Meeting 


3/7/2018 – Madison Sports Commission Meeting  


3/17/2018 - Stoughton Courier Hub Article 


3/20/2018 - Parks & Recreation Committee Meeting 


4/17/2018 - Parks & Recreation Committee Meeting 


4/18/2018 – Whitewater Park Concept Plan Public Presentation 


4/21/2018 – Sustainable Stoughton Earth Day Event 


4/24/2018 – City Council Meeting  


5/7/2018 - River & Trails Taskforce Meeting 


5/12/2018 - Stoughton Courier Hub Article  


5/15/2018 - Parks & Recreation Committee Meeting 


6/4/2018 – Wisconsin State Journal Article  


6/5/2018 – Channel 3 News Interview  


6/6/2018 – Channel3000.Com Article  


6/2018 – Greater Madison InBusiness Magazine Article  


6/19/2018 - Parks & Recreation Committee Meeting 


7/9/2018 - River & Trails Taskforce Meeting 


7/17/2018 - Parks & Recreation Committee Meeting 







Public Information & Meetings List – Yahara River Park 


8/15/2018 – Dunkirk Dam Lake District Meeting 


8/21/2018 - Parks & Recreation Committee Meeting 


9/10/2018 - River & Trails Taskforce Meeting   


9/17/2018 – Steering Committee Meeting  


9/18/2018 - Parks & Recreation Committee Meeting 


10/1/2018 – Wisconsin State Journal Article  


10/7/2018 – Lions Club Meeting  


10/15/2018 – Steering Committee Meeting 


10/16/2018 - Parks & Recreation Committee Meeting  


10/31/2018 – Rotary Club Meeting  


11/5/2018 - River & Trails Taskforce Meeting 


 11/19/2018 – Steering Committee Meeting  


11/20/2018 - Parks & Recreation Committee Meeting 


12/18/2018 - Parks & Recreation Committee Meeting 


1/7/2019 - River & Trails Taskforce Meeting 


1/15/2019 - Parks & Recreation Committee Meeting 


1/28/2019 – Steering Committee Meeting  


2/18/2019 – Steering Committee Meeting  


2/19/2019 - Parks & Recreation Committee Meeting 


3/4/2019 - River & Trails Taskforce Meeting 


3/19/2019 - Parks & Recreation Committee Meeting 


4/15/2019 – Steering Committee Meeting  


4/16/2019 - Parks & Recreation Committee Meeting 


4/23/2019 – City Council Meeting  


5/6/2019 - River & Trails Taskforce Meeting 


5/20/2019 – Steering Committee Meeting  


5/21/2019 - Parks & Recreation Committee Meeting 


6/11/2019 – City Council Meeting  


6/17/2019 – Steering Committee Meeting 







Public Information & Meetings List – Yahara River Park 


6/18/2019 - Parks & Recreation Committee Meeting  


7/8/2019 - River & Trails Taskforce Meeting 


7/15/2019 – Steering Committee Meeting  


7/16/2019 - Parks & Recreation Committee Meeting 


8/7/2019 – RDA Meeting  


8/7/2019 – Rotary Club Meeting  


8/19/2019 – Steering Committee Meeting 


8/20/2019 - Parks & Recreation Committee Meeting 


8/22/2019 – CIP Meeting  


9/5/2019 – CIP Meeting   


9/9/2019 - River & Trails Taskforce Meeting 


9/16/2019 – Steering Committee Meeting  


9/17/2019 - Parks & Recreation Committee Meeting 


9/20/2019 – Chris Schmitz, Stoughton Hospital  


10/10/2019 - Stoughton Courier Hub Article 


10/15/2019 - Parks & Recreation Committee Meeting  


10/21/2019 – Steering Committee Meeting  


11/4/2019 - River & Trails Taskforce Meeting 


11/18/2019 – Steering Committee Meeting 


11/19/2019 - Parks & Recreation Committee Meeting  


11/28/2019 - Stoughton Courier Hub Article  


12/16/2019 – Steering Committee Meeting  


12/17/2019 - Parks & Recreation Committee Meeting 


1/6/2020 – River & Trails Taskforce Meeting  


1/14/2020 – City Council Meeting  


1/16/2020 – Gary Hebl & Mark Miller Meeting  


1/21/2020 – Steering Committee Meeting  


1/21/2020 – Parks & Recreation Committee Meeting 


1/23/2020 – Riparian Owner Meeting #1 (City Residents) 







Public Information & Meetings List – Yahara River Park 


1/24/2020 – Riparian Owner Meeting Home Visit (City Resident) 


1/25/2020 – Riparian Owner Meeting #2 (City Residents) 


1/26/2020 - Stoughton Courier Hub Article  


1/29/2020 – Preliminary Design Public Meeting  


2/4/2020 - Stoughton Courier Hub Article  


2/11/2020 – Riparian Meeting (Pleasant Springs Residents) 


2/18/2020 – Riparian Owner Meeting Home Visit (Pleasant Springs Resident) 


2/18/2020 – Parks & Recreation Committee Meeting  


2/24/2020 – Wisconsin State Journal Article  


2/24/2020 - Stoughton Courier Hub Article  


2/25/2020 – Special Parks & Recreation Committee Meeting 


2/25/2020 – City Council Meeting  


3/2/2020 - River & Trails Taskforce Meeting 


3/4/2020 – City Resident Meeting (Nancy S.) 


3/4/2020 – Stoughton Courier Hub Article 


3/7/2020 - Stoughton Courier Hub Article  


3/10/2020 – City Council Meeting  


3/23/2020 – Town of Pleasant Springs Meeting  


5/18/2020 – Steering Committee Meeting  


5/19/2020 – Parks & Recreation Committee Meeting  


5/27/2020 – Rock River Coalition Annual Meeting 


6/15/2020 – Steering Committee Meeting 


6/16/2020 - Parks & Recreation Committee Meeting 


7/6/2020 – River & Trails Taskforce Meeting   


7/20/2020 – Steering Committee Meeting  


7/21/2020 - Parks & Recreation Committee Meeting  


8/27/2020 – CIP Committee Meeting  


9/24/2020 – CIP Committee Meeting  


10/19/2020 – Steering Committee Meeting  







Public Information & Meetings List – Yahara River Park 


10/21/2020 - Parks & Recreation Committee Meeting  


11/10/2020 – City Council Meeting  


1/20/2021 – Dunkirk Dam Lake District Meeting  


1/25/2021 – Steering Committee Meeting  


2/4/2021 – Committee of the Whole Meeting (Progress Update) 


3/9/2021 – Town of Dunkirk Meeting 


4/20/2021 - Parks & Recreation Committee Meeting   


4/27/2021 – City Council Meeting 


5/3/2021 - River & Trails Taskforce Meeting    


6/11/2021 – Riparian Owner Meeting (Town of Dunkirk Resident) 


7/12/2021 – River & Trail Taskforce Meeting 


7/14/2021 – Tower Times Article   


8/16/2021 – Steering Committee Meeting  


8/17/2021 – Parks & Recreation Committee Meeting  


8/24/2021 – Committee of the Whole Meeting (Hydraulic Analysis)  


9/9/2021 – CIP Committee Meeting  


9/20/2021 – Steering Committee Meeting  


9/23/2021 – CIP Committee Meeting  


11/9/2021 – City Council  


1/24/2022 – Steering Committee Meeting  


2/21/2022 – Steering Committee Meeting 


3/8/2022 – City Council  


3/21/2022 – Steering Committee Meeting  


4/7/2022 – Pleasant Springs Meeting (EOR Coordination) 


4/18/2022 – Steering Committee Meeting  


4/26/2022 – City Council Meeting  


5/16/2022 – Steering Committee Meeting 


6/14/2022 – City Council Meeting  


9/13/2022 – City Council Meeting   







Public Information & Meetings List – Yahara River Park 


9/22/2022 – CIP Committee Meeting  


 





		Army Corp Public Comment Responses- Final

		Historical Society Dam Letter

		Meeting and Publication List






Bike & Pedestrian Safety Survey


1 / 25


30.20% 45


0.00% 0


68.46% 102


1.34% 2


Q1 Gender: How do you identify?
Answered: 149 Skipped: 0


TOTAL 149


# PREFER TO SELF-DESCRIBE, BELOW DATE


1 Does this questiom have anything to do with this survey? 10/4/2022 3:50 PM


2 Fuck this question 10/1/2022 7:41 AM


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


Man


Non-binary


Woman


Prefer to
self-describ...


ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES


Man


Non-binary


Woman


Prefer to self-describe, below







Bike & Pedestrian Safety Survey


2 / 25


0.67% 1


0.00% 0


6.71% 10


35.57% 53


25.50% 38


19.46% 29


12.08% 18


Q2 What is your age?
Answered: 149 Skipped: 0


TOTAL 149


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


Under 18


18-24


25-34


35-44


45-54


55-64


65+


ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES


Under 18


18-24


25-34


35-44


45-54


55-64


65+







Bike & Pedestrian Safety Survey


3 / 25


63.76% 95


36.24% 54


Q3 Do you have children who live at home?
Answered: 149 Skipped: 0


TOTAL 149


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


Yes


No


ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES


Yes


No







Bike & Pedestrian Safety Survey


4 / 25


94.63% 141


1.34% 2


0.67% 1


0.67% 1


0.00% 0


0.00% 0


2.68% 4


Q4 Which race or ethnicity best describes you? (Please choose only one)
Answered: 149 Skipped: 0


TOTAL 149


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


White or
Caucasian


Black or
African...


Hispanic or
Latino


Asian or Asian
American


American
Indian or...


Native
Hawaiian or...


Another race


ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES


White or Caucasian


Black or African American


Hispanic or Latino


Asian or Asian American


American Indian or Alaska Native


Native Hawaiian or other Pacific Islander


Another race







Bike & Pedestrian Safety Survey


5 / 25


17.45% 26


12.75% 19


27.52% 41


21.48% 32


20.81% 31


Q5 What aldermanic district do you live in?
Answered: 149 Skipped: 0


TOTAL 149


# UNSURE/DON'T LIVE IN CITY (PLEASE SPECIFY WHERE YOU LIVE) DATE


1 8 10/10/2022 7:43 AM


2 Stoughton 10/3/2022 3:26 PM


3 I cannot tell from the map as I can't read it, but I live on the corner of North Madison/McKinley
Streets.


10/3/2022 12:43 PM


4 I live technically in the town of Dunn 10/3/2022 10:42 AM


5 District 7 10/3/2022 10:11 AM


6 Rutland township 10/3/2022 5:50 AM


7 Dunn 10/2/2022 9:23 PM


8 Dunkirk 10/2/2022 12:29 PM


9 County rd A; east of Nordic ridge 10/1/2022 7:59 PM


10 Pleasant Springs 10/1/2022 5:54 PM


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


District 1


District 2


District 3


District 4


Unsure/Don't
live in City...


ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES


District 1


District 2


District 3


District 4


Unsure/Don't live in City (please specify where you live)







Bike & Pedestrian Safety Survey


6 / 25


11 Town of Pleasant Springs 10/1/2022 4:25 PM


12 Dunkirk 10/1/2022 8:11 AM


13 Ward 5 10/1/2022 7:19 AM


14 Ward 8 10/1/2022 6:34 AM


15 Albion 9/30/2022 7:58 PM


16 Pleasant Springs 9/30/2022 6:44 PM


17 Dunkirk 9/30/2022 6:43 PM


18 Town of Dunn 9/30/2022 6:05 PM


19 Pleasant springs 9/30/2022 4:55 PM


20 dunkirk 9/30/2022 4:32 PM


21 Town of Dunkirk besides Fox Prairie School 9/30/2022 4:07 PM


22 Town of Dunkirk 9/30/2022 4:03 PM


23 Pleasant springs 9/30/2022 3:58 PM


24 Not sure 9/30/2022 3:53 PM


25 Pleasant Springs, SE Lake Kegonsa 9/30/2022 3:50 PM


26 Dunkirk 9/30/2022 3:49 PM


27 Not sure which district 9/30/2022 3:32 PM


28 Pleasant springs 9/30/2022 3:23 PM


29 N. Madison Street 9/30/2022 3:14 PM


30 Town of Pleasant Springs 9/30/2022 3:14 PM


31 Town of Rutland 9/29/2022 10:07 AM







Bike & Pedestrian Safety Survey


7 / 25


4.70% 7


38.26% 57


57.05% 85


Q6 As a pedestrian or biker, have you ever been hit by a vehicle or had a
close call?


Answered: 149 Skipped: 0


TOTAL 149


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


Yes - Hit


Yes - Close
call


No


ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES


Yes - Hit


Yes - Close call 


No







Bike & Pedestrian Safety Survey


8 / 25


0.67% 1


24.16% 36


75.17% 112


Q7 As a driver, have you ever had a collision or a close call with a
pedestrian or biker?


Answered: 149 Skipped: 0


TOTAL 149


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


Yes -
Collision


Yes - Close
Call


No


ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES


Yes - Collision 


Yes - Close Call


No







Bike & Pedestrian Safety Survey


9 / 25


Q8 Do you think any of the areas listed below are in need of improvement
for pedestrian or bike safety? Check all that apply.


Answered: 149 Skipped: 0







Bike & Pedestrian Safety Survey


10 / 25


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


Highway 51
between Coun...


Highway 51
between WI-1...


Highway 51
between Page...


Highway 51
between Lynn...


County Rd B
between...


County Rd B
between High...


Roby Rd


Jackson St


Van Buren St
between Roby...


Van Buren St
(WI-138)...


Aaker Rd
between Hoel...


Milwaukee St
between WI-1...


Page St
between Main...


Page St
between Main...


South
St/Dunkirk A...


County Rd N
between Coun...


Veterans Rd
between High...


Other (please
specify road...







Bike & Pedestrian Safety Survey


11 / 25


57.05% 85


48.32% 72


32.89% 49


30.20% 45


54.36% 81


49.66% 74


28.19% 42


25.50% 38


18.79% 28


24.83% 37


19.46% 29


12.08% 18


22.15% 33


20.13% 30


16.78% 25


43.62% 65


18.79% 28


21.48% 32


Total Respondents: 149  


# OTHER (PLEASE SPECIFY ROAD AND LOCATION) DATE


1 Can't feel save with drivers rushing and not caring 10/12/2022 6:39 AM


2 Specifically Page street from Main out to B needs to have the bike lane/fog line repainted. It's
barely visible. The City paid to have the yellow center lines redone, so why not the white as
well?


10/11/2022 3:24 PM


3 Division street for pedestrians, forton to coopers causeway 10/11/2022 2:12 PM


4 not sure 10/9/2022 4:38 PM


5 Highway 51 between County Rd. N and Racetrack Rd. (no bike lanes or continuous sidewalks
on 51) Intersection of 51 and N (no turn signals, walk lights are ignored by vehicles turning)


10/4/2022 4:36 PM


6 None 10/3/2022 5:50 AM


7 N/a 10/3/2022 12:01 AM


8 Don’t know 10/2/2022 9:25 AM


9 4th street/Taylor north of mandt park is in rough condition for biking. 10/1/2022 7:59 PM


10 county N and B needs to be wider for cycles 10/1/2022 3:46 PM


11 I live on Giles street and I walk my 8 year old to school every morning. It is so dangerous to
cross Hwy 51. Our last crossing guard almost got hit by a car and had to quit due to safety
concerns. There is also no stop signs on the intersection of Park St. and South Morris St.


10/1/2022 10:11 AM


ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES


Highway 51 between County Rd B and WI-138


Highway 51 between WI-138 and Page St


Highway 51 between Page St and Lynn St


Highway 51 between Lynn St and Spring Rd


County Rd B between Williams Dr and County Rd N


County Rd B between Highway 51 and Williams Dr


Roby Rd


Jackson St


Van Buren St between Roby Rd and Highway 51


Van Buren St (WI-138) between Highway 51 and Aaker Rd


Aaker Rd between Hoel Ave and 4th St


Milwaukee St between WI-138 and 4th St


Page St between Main St and County Rd B 


Page St between Main St and Milwaukee St


South St/Dunkirk Ave between 4th St and Veterans Rd


County Rd N between County Rd B and Highway 51 


Veterans Rd between Highway 51 and Dunkirk Ave 


Other (please specify road and location)







Bike & Pedestrian Safety Survey


12 / 25


People are not concerned that people may be walking through that intersection. We also have
to walk across Vernon St. to reach the road that leads to his school. In the morning there is a
very heavy glare that makes cars traveling down Vernon St. towards the school very
dangerous for people walking across the street. In essence what I’m saying as this is a
popular route for children to walk to school it should be made a lot safer. As an adult I’ve
almost been hit and I can’t trust people to stop for me child to walk safely to school by
themselves. Thank you for taking the time to do this survey. I hope it helps.


12 Rutland Dunn road and Hwy 51 is dangerous and difficult to return to city streets 10/1/2022 8:11 AM


13 Why did my race matter for this survey? 10/1/2022 7:41 AM


14 Corner of Hoel and Hilldale. Cars speed around the corner and hard to see coming from the
south both as a pedestrian and biker


10/1/2022 7:19 AM


15 None 10/1/2022 6:01 AM


16 Crosswalks on e main, Franklin, e Main Morris , e main by the hospital! I walk to work and
have had several close calls. And there are school age kids every morning!


10/1/2022 5:31 AM


17 Felland and Hyland missing sidewalks fully 9/30/2022 10:05 PM


18 All over the city 9/30/2022 8:29 PM


19 Na 9/30/2022 7:53 PM


20 Need crosswalk at Page to Williams. Need a sidewalk placed between Eli’s automotive and
Williams


9/30/2022 6:38 PM


21 N Madison St between Roby rd and Jackson St 9/30/2022 5:44 PM


22 Linking north of Hwy B to town...example: country club area to Sandhill area. Linking outskirt
neighborhoods to town


9/30/2022 5:34 PM


23 The entire Williams Drive. Kids and adults drive so fast and it’s our only way to get out of our
cul de sac


9/30/2022 4:55 PM


24 County roads & high traffic roads need more clarity 9/30/2022 4:54 PM


25 No changes needed 9/30/2022 4:36 PM


26 All of them need improvement, or at least more awareness of the rules 9/30/2022 4:32 PM


27 Chalet Drive between Highway 51 and Vernon Street. Large groups of children walk down the
street every day before and after school between Kegonsa Elementary and afterschool
programs on Highway 51 (they don't cross 51). There is no sidewalk on Chalet, and parking is
allowed. When there's snow in the abandoned lot on the west side of the street, 5-10 year old
kids walk IN THE STREET, in the vehicular travel lane. It's a miracle that no children have
been hit by a car yet. The city needs to do something about this and show some interest in
residents on the east side of town.


9/30/2022 4:03 PM


28 Need bike lanes! 9/30/2022 3:53 PM


29 All streets have safety concerns if the biker is pulling child's trailer. Stoughton needs more
dedicated bike trails.


9/30/2022 3:49 PM


30 Lincoln Ave all off it 9/30/2022 3:32 PM


31 Jackson Street and Lincoln Street 9/30/2022 3:14 PM


32 None 9/30/2022 3:07 PM







Bike & Pedestrian Safety Survey


13 / 25


17.45% 26


56.38% 84


16.78% 25


25.50% 38


12.08% 18


20.81% 31


41.61% 62


Q9 If so, why are these areas in need of improvement?
Answered: 149 Skipped: 0


Total Respondents: 149  


# OTHER (PLEASE SPECIFY) DATE


1 Yes 10/12/2022 6:39 AM


2 Insufficient bike facilities. 10/11/2022 3:24 PM


3 Traffic speed too high, lack of dedicated bike lanes or adequate paved shoulder 10/11/2022 2:12 PM


4 County B needs a bike lane. 10/10/2022 7:43 AM


5 again, not sure 10/9/2022 4:38 PM


6 bike-specific lanes do not exist, making biking risky. 10/8/2022 1:57 PM


7 I have run and biked on Hwy 51 between Page and the trail and a larger shoulder would greatly 10/5/2022 4:03 PM


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


Sidewalks are
cracked or i...


Too much car
traffic


Insufficient
lighting


The street
doesn't have...


The street
doesn't have...


Crossing the
street takes...


Other (please
specify)


ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES


Sidewalks are cracked or in disrepair 


Too much car traffic 


Insufficient lighting 


The street doesn't have a crosswalk 


The street doesn't have a traffic light 


Crossing the street takes too long 


Other (please specify)







Bike & Pedestrian Safety Survey


14 / 25


improve safety.


8 Bikers and pedestrians don't follow the rules and cross where there aren't crosswalks or dart
across traffic. bikers don't always stay in designated bike lanes and often ride 2 or 3 across.


10/5/2022 2:54 PM


9 Police don't want bikers on Main St. sidewalks. Folks exiting their vehicles don't look for
bikers. Heavy car & school traffic in AM and 3:00-500 PM especially.


10/4/2022 4:36 PM


10 Repaint the bike lane white lines and it will be better. The lighted cross-walks are pretty good,
but please add one at Wilson street and Page for increased pedestrian visibility.


10/3/2022 10:14 PM


11 I was thinking of bike lanes and room for bikes to travel safely along parked cars. If I was
speaking about pedestrian traffic, my only concern is that some of our sidewalks are in
disrepair.


10/3/2022 12:43 PM


12 It would be nice if there was some way to get to Stoughton either by being able to cross 51 at
Rutland Dunn Town Line Road with out having to ride along 51 in order to get to Roby Road.


10/3/2022 10:42 AM


13 Need sidewalks 10/3/2022 10:11 AM


14 Bike lanes or paths would be best 10/3/2022 7:38 AM


15 N/A 10/3/2022 5:50 AM


16 N/a 10/3/2022 12:01 AM


17 Roughest road in town 10/2/2022 11:43 PM


18 When 51 is our Main Street, particularly as Stoughton expands North and West up 51 and 138,
we desperately need good and safe routes for bikes and walking.. We also need more trees for
health.


10/2/2022 5:00 PM


19 Not familiar 10/2/2022 9:25 AM


20 Many have no sidewalks or not contiguous. 10/2/2022 9:22 AM


21 inattentive drivers 10/2/2022 6:52 AM


22 traffic goes too fast 10/2/2022 5:15 AM


23 no side walk, no bike path/lane, trees in sidewalk 10/1/2022 10:11 PM


24 Unsafe. Needs for crossing lights to notify cars need to stop for people trying to cross the road 10/1/2022 10:11 AM


25 Unsafe for riding a bike and some have no sidewalks for walking 10/1/2022 8:30 AM


26 Lack of bike lanes or safe ways to cross 10/1/2022 8:11 AM


27 Need either a stop sign on Hoel and Hilldale or pedestrian warning sign 10/1/2022 7:19 AM


28 speeding cars and trucks 10/1/2022 6:59 AM


29 Difficult to bike safely due to traffic 10/1/2022 6:20 AM


30 No improvements needed 10/1/2022 6:01 AM


31 The button lights work well 10/1/2022 5:31 AM


32 Only sidewalk on one side 10/1/2022 5:05 AM


33 No safe place to cross the street. Drivers don’t slow down or even come close to going the
speed limit.


9/30/2022 11:34 PM


34 Missing full sidewalks 9/30/2022 10:05 PM


35 No enforcement of laws. 9/30/2022 8:29 PM


36 Seperation between bikes & cars 9/30/2022 8:17 PM


37 Lots of bike traffic 9/30/2022 7:53 PM


38 Bike lanes needed 9/30/2022 7:01 PM


39 Sreets at went wide enough for biking or walking/running safely 9/30/2022 6:44 PM







Bike & Pedestrian Safety Survey


15 / 25


40 no sidewalks, and/or no shoulder for walking or bikes 9/30/2022 6:40 PM


41 Need bike lanes. Often come across bikers in the middle of the road. 9/30/2022 6:28 PM


42 There is no side walk but always a lot of walkers 9/30/2022 5:44 PM


43 Busy hwy, lack of sidewalks make this stretch hard to cross by bike or foot 9/30/2022 5:34 PM


44 Please install over the street flashing lights for the crosswalk between pick and save and
cummins


9/30/2022 5:06 PM


45 Country roads & busy roads aren’t wide for comfort 9/30/2022 4:54 PM


46 No changes 9/30/2022 4:36 PM


47 again, various reasons for different areas 9/30/2022 4:32 PM


48 School children are forced to walk in vehicular traffic because there are no sidewalks.. 9/30/2022 4:03 PM


49 Need bike lanes 9/30/2022 3:53 PM


50 Unsafe with high volume traffic on roads w high speed limits. 9/30/2022 3:50 PM


51 Insufficient bike lanes 9/30/2022 3:50 PM


52 Streets are too narrow, some are rough, many are too narrow without bike lanes 9/30/2022 3:49 PM


53 A bike lane would be a significant help 9/30/2022 3:32 PM


54 No sidewalks / paths along the highways 9/30/2022 3:21 PM


55 These roads need a separate wide lane for bikes. - Not just a gravelly road shoulder. Those
cars go high speeds on the roads along the edges of town. They don't share with bikes, and it
is not safe for a bike to be within inches of the cars lane.


9/30/2022 3:21 PM


56 School zone & asshole drivers trying to hit the kids 9/30/2022 3:14 PM


57 Not enough room for bikes or pedestrians 9/30/2022 3:14 PM


58 None 9/30/2022 3:07 PM


59 Should have dedicated bike lanes. 9/30/2022 3:03 PM


60 No shoulder/room for bikes 9/30/2022 3:02 PM


61 Auto travel speeds are too high… 9/29/2022 10:07 AM


62 Not enough space between cars and bike lane 9/28/2022 8:15 PM







Bike & Pedestrian Safety Survey


16 / 25


Q10 If the following changes were made to improve pedestrian and bike
infrastructure, would you walk or bike more?


Answered: 149 Skipped: 0


Additional
off-road tra...


Pedestrian
bridges over...


Pedestrian
underpass on...


Painted bike
lanes


Bike racks


Cycling signs
and road...







Bike & Pedestrian Safety Survey


17 / 25


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


Yes No Maybe


Pedestrian and
bicyclist...


Protected bike
lanes (physi...


Traffic
calming meth...


Shared-lane
markings...


Intersection
treatments f...







Bike & Pedestrian Safety Survey


18 / 25


88.44%
130


5.44%
8


6.12%
9


 
147


72.22%
104


9.03%
13


18.75%
27


 
144


66.22%
98


15.54%
23


18.24%
27


 
148


68.49%
100


15.75%
23


15.75%
23


 
146


32.33%
43


35.34%
47


32.33%
43


 
133


52.11%
74


21.83%
31


26.06%
37


 
142


58.09%
79


16.18%
22


25.74%
35


 
136


67.83%
97


16.08%
23


16.08%
23


 
143


43.26%
61


26.24%
37


30.50%
43


 
141


40.44%
55


25.00%
34


34.56%
47


 
136


47.83%
66


22.46%
31


29.71%
41


 
138


 YES NO MAYBE TOTAL


Additional off-road trails (shared use paths)


Pedestrian bridges over the Yahara River 


Pedestrian underpass on Highway 51 between WI-138 and County Rd B 


Painted bike lanes 


Bike racks 


Cycling signs and road markings 


Pedestrian and bicyclist scaled lighting 


Protected bike lanes (physical barriers between road and bike lane. Medians, shrubs,
bollards, etc)


Traffic calming methods (speed bumps, raised curb extensions)


Shared-lane markings (sharrows)


Intersection treatments for bikes (bike boxes, stop bars, lead signal indicators)







Bike & Pedestrian Safety Survey


19 / 25


93.29% 139


6.04% 9


0.00% 0


0.00% 0


0.67% 1


Q11 How often do you travel by car within Stoughton?
Answered: 149 Skipped: 0


TOTAL 149


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


3 or more
times per week


1-2 times per
week


1-3 times per
month


Less than once
per month


Never


ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES


3 or more times per week


1-2 times per week


1-3 times per month


Less than once per month


Never







Bike & Pedestrian Safety Survey


20 / 25


59.06% 88


22.82% 34


8.72% 13


6.04% 9


3.36% 5


Q12 How often do you walk within Stoughton?
Answered: 149 Skipped: 0


TOTAL 149


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


3 or more
times per week


1-2 times per
week


1-3 times per
month


Less than once
per month


Never


ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES


3 or more times per week


1-2 times per week


1-3 times per month


Less than once per month


Never







Bike & Pedestrian Safety Survey


21 / 25


20.13% 30


16.11% 24


24.83% 37


20.13% 30


18.79% 28


Q13 How often do you bike within Stoughton?
Answered: 149 Skipped: 0


TOTAL 149


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


3 or more
times per week


1-2 times per
week


1-3 times per
month


Less than once
per month


Never


ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES


3 or more times per week


1-2 times per week


1-3 times per month


Less than once per month


Never







Bike & Pedestrian Safety Survey


22 / 25


0.00% 0


0.00% 0


0.00% 0


8.05% 12


91.95% 137


Q14 How often do you use a taxi (including Uber and Lyft) within
Stoughton?


Answered: 149 Skipped: 0


TOTAL 149


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


3 or more
times per week


1-2 times per
week


1-3 times per
month


Less than once
per month


Never


ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES


3 or more times per week


1-2 times per week


1-3 times per month


Less than once per month


Never







Bike & Pedestrian Safety Survey


23 / 25


Q15 Is there anything else you would like to share?
Answered: 59 Skipped: 90


# RESPONSES DATE


1 the painted white cross walks are slippery when wet. 10/9/2022 4:38 PM


2 sidewalks on Van Buren from 51 to Greig Trail are in need of repair and updated curb cuts for
accessibility


10/6/2022 10:09 AM


3 The highway and river make it more difficult , however, kids & adults should be able to walk or
bike safely from the East to West side of Stoughton. It would be an incentive for families to
move to Stoughton. Bike paths are already in McFarland, DeForest, Sun Prairie, Belleville.


10/4/2022 4:36 PM


4 No 10/4/2022 7:58 AM


5 No 10/4/2022 7:19 AM


6 You guys rock! :) 10/3/2022 10:14 PM


7 Thank you for taking an interest in this subject! 10/3/2022 12:43 PM


8 Whatever we do, we should live within our means. I'm all for making our city nice but it's not
forward thinking to pile on debt to our future generations of tax payers


10/3/2022 10:11 AM


9 Improved transit around Stoughton should be on the forefront of the city council when looking
for ways to improve travel. Possible cab/bus to Madison and/or Janesville would likely be used
by a large part of the city’s population


10/3/2022 8:26 AM


10 I frequently walk and run in Stoughton and find drivers to be very anti-
pedestrians/runners/bikers. I don’t like to use sidewalks while running because they tend to be
uneven and I try to stick to side roads as much as possible because I find the busier streets
(like Page, Lincoln, Jackson, Van Buren - I always use sidewalks on Main/51) very dangerous
even when I’m right at the curb. I love using the trails we have in town and would be thrilled to
see more paths/trails added.


10/3/2022 7:20 AM


11 No 10/3/2022 5:50 AM


12 No 10/3/2022 12:01 AM


13 As Stoughton is expanding at a quick rate, we need more trees along the roads as well as
bike/walking paths. We have entered an era of people staying inside and using cars for short
errands. For safety, community, and Health, we need a bike able/walkable city now more than
ever.


10/2/2022 5:00 PM


14 Bike safety and bicyclists obeying the traffic signs and rules of the road. 10/2/2022 1:35 PM


15 The crosswalk signals around town for pedestrians are fantastic! More of that please. 10/2/2022 9:22 AM


16 Love walking and biking with our kids in Stoughton and improvements to this would only help
our lovely community!


10/2/2022 8:39 AM


17 How do you get people to actually stop at a stop sign? 10/2/2022 6:52 AM


18 it would be great to have easy connection to the bike paths in close communities and to Lake
Kegonsa State Park area from Stoughton. The bike park at Lowell seems like it could use a
station where bike repair can be done and the bridge from the playground to the bike area is
too steep for younger bikers or older bikers to get over.


10/1/2022 10:11 PM


19 I love bling to do errands in stoughton but would love to see safer and easier ways to do so! 10/1/2022 7:59 PM


20 No 10/1/2022 6:32 PM


21 No 10/1/2022 4:25 PM


22 Lighting would improve a lot of areas 10/1/2022 11:51 AM







Bike & Pedestrian Safety Survey


24 / 25


23 Thank you for making our community more bike and walking friendly. It’s what helps us to stay
in our house and in Stoughton in our retirement.


10/1/2022 8:30 AM


24 I bike a LOT around Stoughton. There are ample places to bike on side streets throughout the
city (if you follow the rules). County B, N and 51 need help if biking around Stoughton is to be
done. Completion of the Yahara Trail would make Stoughton a destination for Madison, et al
bikers, and would encourage bike commuters from Stoughton to Madison during the warm
months.


10/1/2022 8:29 AM


25 Not that I can think of. 10/1/2022 8:28 AM


26 Improvement to Mke street are GREAT! Hoping for bike lanes on Hwy A between 138 and Hoel
as well as a bike lane (or undamaged shoulder) on B between Williams drive and N


10/1/2022 8:11 AM


27 This survey feels like someone is looking for justification to spend money. 10/1/2022 7:41 AM


28 More safe biking/walking trails or paths in general around Stoughton would be lovely. 10/1/2022 7:19 AM


29 Stoughton needs to take action on the excessive speeding in our town, it has gotten out of
control.


10/1/2022 6:59 AM


30 Love to have the bike trail to McFarland finished 10/1/2022 6:05 AM


31 I’d like to see funds directed toward improving baseball/softball fields; improving existing
facilities instead of applying funds to bike/walking paths.


10/1/2022 6:01 AM


32 I walk dogs two miles a day and missing sidewalks in some spots adds a danger, blind corner
on Felland and bikers are not curtious to walkers and ride on the sidewalks forcing you in the
grass sometimes.


9/30/2022 10:05 PM


33 Too many people, both motor vehicles and bicycles not following laws and common courtesy
of the road. Makes it hard to want to do anything in the town.


9/30/2022 8:29 PM


34 Recognition biking is just a form of transportation 9/30/2022 8:17 PM


35 No 9/30/2022 8:03 PM


36 Na 9/30/2022 7:53 PM


37 No 9/30/2022 6:44 PM


38 No 9/30/2022 6:43 PM


39 Bike lanes would be great, but only if you can get the teenagers to use them. 9/30/2022 6:28 PM


40 No 9/30/2022 6:05 PM


41 Sidewalk on N Madison St! 9/30/2022 5:44 PM


42 No 9/30/2022 5:34 PM


43 Bike goes on the back of the car to leave Stoughton to find biking opportunities. Would love a
longer more interesting reason to keep biking trips in Stoughton


9/30/2022 4:30 PM


44 Inform bicyclist that they are to stop at stop signs and red lights just as cars. Some bicyclists
feel entitled. Attitude


9/30/2022 4:07 PM


45 When I lived within walking distance of downtown, I walked in the city frequently. The only
reason I don't now is because I live outside of town.


9/30/2022 4:03 PM


46 We are AVID cyclists and encourage you to focus on making Stoughton a far more bike
friendly community!! Thank you for asking.


9/30/2022 3:59 PM


47 Connecting paths to explore and get around Stoughton or for exercise is needed - paths now
are choppy and don’t allow for safe or productive transport


9/30/2022 3:54 PM


48 I would bike more often if there were bike lanes! 9/30/2022 3:53 PM


49 Traveling non-motorized on Williams, B and N needs improvement to connect common paths
for such purposes.


9/30/2022 3:50 PM


50 The island for pedestrian safety at crossing is a wonderful improvement. However, the bicycle
approaches to them on the street does not give much room for bikes. It's like the bike lane


9/30/2022 3:49 PM







Bike & Pedestrian Safety Survey


25 / 25


suddenly disappears. Could parking be restricted somewhat sooner to provide a ramped bike
lane departure? It wouldn't take much, possibly another 50 ft. Otherwise, you get squeezed
between traffic and parked vehicles.


51 appreciate improvements to encourage walking 9/30/2022 3:44 PM


52 The walking/biking trail along the river is wonderful. I wish you could get that sort of thing
extended up to McFarland and south of Stoughton.


9/30/2022 3:21 PM


53 Implement & enforce year-round alternate side parking. Enforce all traffic rules. 9/30/2022 3:14 PM


54 No 9/30/2022 3:14 PM


55 Pedestrian and bike safety in stoughton really isn't a problem. 9/30/2022 3:07 PM


56 Creating a bike and pedestrian friendly city is an important goal. Let's make it happen! 9/30/2022 3:03 PM


57 Thanks for looking at this issue, would love to see Stoughton become more bike friendly 9/30/2022 3:02 PM


58 Love it if we would encourage more biking and pedestrian safe activities. Than you! 9/30/2022 2:58 PM


59 Stoughton could be a great bike/per community if leaders had the courage to reduce auto
centric development and encourage active transportation.


9/29/2022 10:07 AM








 


1 
 


REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
Professional Services to the City of Stoughton Parks and 


Recreation Department 


For 


Kettle Park West Outlot 1 Park Master Plan 


 


 
  







 


2 
 


Contents 
Section 1 – General Information ................................................................................................................... 3 


1.1 Purpose ......................................................................................................................................... 3 


Park Master Plan and Cost Estimate ..................................................................................................... 3 


1.2 General Submission Information .................................................................................................. 3 


1.3 Site Visits & Pre-Submittal Meeting .................................................................................................... 3 


1.4 Preparation Costs .......................................................................................................................... 3 


Section 2 – Scope of Work ............................................................................................................................ 3 


2.1 Project Scope ...................................................................................................................................... 4 


Mandt Park Master Plan ....................................................................................................................... 4 


Section 3 – Anticipated Process .................................................................................................................... 5 


3.1 Examination of Proposals .................................................................................................................... 5 


3.2 Proposal Acceptance Period ............................................................................................................... 5 


3.3 Confidentiality ..................................................................................................................................... 5 


3.4 Proposal Format .................................................................................................................................. 5 


3.5 Signature Requirements ..................................................................................................................... 5 


3.6 Proposal Submission ........................................................................................................................... 5 


3.7 Questions ...................................................................................................................................... 5 


3.8 News Releases ..................................................................................................................................... 6 


3.9 Disposition of Proposals ...................................................................................................................... 6 


3.10 Modification/Withdrawal of Proposals ............................................................................................ 6 


3.11 Oral Change/Interpretation .............................................................................................................. 6 


3.12 Late Submissions ............................................................................................................................... 6 


3.13 Rejection of Proposals ...................................................................................................................... 6 


Section 4 – Proposal and Submission Requirements .................................................................................... 6 


4.1 Proposal Narrative .............................................................................................................................. 7 


Section 5 – Evaluation Criteria and Selection Process .................................................................................. 9 


Section 6 – Contract Negotiation Process..................................................................................................... 9 


 


  







 


3 
 


Section 1 – General Information  
1.1 Purpose 


Park Master Plan and Cost Estimate  
The City of Stoughton Parks and Recreation (SPR) Department is soliciting proposals from 
qualified consultants to provide Landscape Architectural services for the following: 


Kettle Park West Outlot 1 Master Plan 


This work will provide planning services under the direction of SPR staff to evaluate potential 
uses and programming of the park to develop a master plan that is responsive to the site, 
environmentally sensitive, and sustainable. The plan will include written and graphic analysis, 
and recommendations.  


It is the intent of the SPR Department to review and assess the RFP responses to determine if the 
responding firms can meet the needs of the City of Stoughton.  


1.2 General Submission Information 
The SPR Department intends to award a single contract for this project. The proposal should address the 
Consultant’s capabilities for performing all aspects of the project development process while presenting 
specific project information and substantiating the Consultant’s methodologies and approach for 
completing the work requested. Please submit one proposal for both projects with separated costs for 
Part One and Part Two.  The official title for this project is: Kettle Park West Outlot 1 Park Master Plan.  


1.3 Site Visits & Pre-Submittal Meeting  
Consultants are able to visit the site during regular park hours, 7:00 AM to 10:00 PM, to view the site, 
take pictures, etc. SPR will not be allowing pre-submittal meetings, but consultants can contact Dan 
Glynn, Director of Parks & Recreation, with any questions. .  


1.4 Preparation Costs 
Proposers shall be solely responsible for proposal preparation costs, including but not limited to the cost 
of preparing the proposal. By submitting a proposal each Proposer agrees to be bound in this respect 
and waives all claims to such costs and fees.  


Section 2 – Scope of Work  
Outlot 1 at Kettle Park West will be a new park located on the western edge of the City of Stoughton. 
Outlot 1 is a 10.3-acre neighborhood park located north of WI-138 and west of US-51.  The site is 
fronted on the eastern boundary by Oak Opening Drive. The northern boundary of the park is fronted by 
single family homes and Jackson St. The western and southern boundaries of the park are undeveloped 
and offers an opportunity for the park to grow as land to the west is developed. Cyclists and pedestrians 
are able to access the park utilizing 10 foot wide sidewalks on Jackson Street and Oak Opening Road. 


Nearby City of Stoughton parks and trails include the Virgin Lake Trail, 51 West Outlot 6, 51 West Outlot 
3, Virgin Lake Park, and Heggestad Park. The Virgin Lake Trail is an off-road trail that goes from Jackson 
Street through the 51 West Development. It connects Virgin Lake Park, Heggestad Park, and 51 West 
Outlot 6. North of Outlot 1 is 51 West Outlot 3. The two park sites are connected by the Oak Opening 
Trail network.  







 


4 
 


Natural features of the property include a wooded area in the southern third of the park along Oak 
Opening Road. Much of the natural slopes were untouched and there are steep slopes on the site to the 
south. An area in the northwestern corner of the site was graded to provide a site for park infrastructure 
like restrooms, playgrounds, etc.  


2.1 Project Scope 
Mandt Park Master Plan  
Work as directed by City staff in the planning process to prepare a Master Plan for Outlot 1 (see Exhibit 
A for property map). The planning services to be provided may include, but not necessarily be limited to 
the following: 


A. Review and analyze the existing files and base plan information, including all easements, 
rights-of-way, in-holdings, title review, active use agreements, EIS review, flood plain 
information, on-structural soils, archeological or endangered resources, an inventory of site 
opportunities and constraints, and physical, regulatory, and historical limitations that impact 
development and use of the park.  


B. Site visit and kick-off meeting with City staff 
C. Utilize studies and reports including current needs assessments, the SPR Comprehensive 


Outdoor Recreation Plan, National Recreation and Parks Association (NRPA) guidelines, etc. 
in the analysis process and recommendations.  


D. Work with City staff to conduct focus group meetings with stakeholders and user groups to 
identify opportunities and constraints for park development and programming. Stakeholder 
and user groups include: 


a. Kettle Park Senior Living Residents 
b. Forward Development Group 
c. Biking Enthusiasts (Stoughton Residents and/or Capital Off-Road Pathfinders 


Volunteers) 
d. Parks & Recreation Committee  


E. Participate and present information and exhibits as directed by SPR staff in public meetings, 
review, and planning sessions as required. Prepare meeting minutes, tabulate inputs and in 
review meeting results with staff.  


F. Develop initial park concept and conduct review meeting with city staff and stakeholders 
G. Work with City staff to conduct a public open house.  
H. Make recommendations for implementation of master plan. 
I. Provide a realistic estimate of probable costs.  
J. Prepare a final draft plan to present to staff, Parks and Recreation Committee, and City 


Council. Revise as necessary.  
K. Present finished plan to staff, public, and elected officials for adoption.  
L. Meet with City staff as necessary. 







 


5 
 


Section 3 – Anticipated Process  
3.1 Examination of Proposals  
Proposers should carefully examine the entire RFP, and addenda thereto, and all related materials and 
data referenced in the RFP. Proposers should become fully aware of the nature of the work and the 
conditions likely to be encountered in performing the work.  


3.2 Proposal Acceptance Period  
Award of this proposal is anticipated to be announced within forty-five (45) calendar days after the 
submission date, although all proposals must be irrevocable for ninety (90) days following the 
submission date.  


3.3 Confidentiality  
The content of all proposals and scoring sheets will be kept confidential along with the successful 
proposer until after the award of the contract, at which time the information will become public 
information. 


3.4 Proposal Format 
Proposals are to be prepared in such a way as to provide straightforward, concise delineation of the 
Proposer’s capabilities to satisfy the requirements of this RFP. Emphasis should be placed on: 


• Conformance to the RFP instructions 
• Responsiveness to the RFP requirements  
• Overall completeness and clarity of content 


3.5 Signature Requirements 
All proposals must be signed. An officer or other agent of a corporate vendor, if authorized to sign 
contracts on its behalf; a member of a partnership; the owner of a privately owned vendor; or other 
agent if properly authorized by a Power of Attorney or equivalent document may sign a proposal. The 
name and title of the individual(s) signing the proposal must be clearly shown immediately below the 
signature.  


3.6 Proposal Submission 
Three (3) copies of the proposal must be received by the City of Stoughton Parks and Recreation 
Department prior to 2:00 PM on Thursday, March 7, 2019. All copies of the proposals must be sealed 
cover and plainly marked with the project name. Proposals shall be delivered or mailed to: 


 City of Stoughton 


 Parks and Recreation Department 


 Attention: Dan Glynn, Parks & Recreation Director  


 207 S. Forrest Street 


 Stoughton, WI 53589 


3.7 Questions 
Questions regarding the proposal shall be submitted to: 







 


6 
 


 Dan Glynn, Parks & Recreation Director 


 Stoughton Parks & Recreation Department  


 207 S. Forrest Street 


Stoughton, WI 53589 


Phone; (608) 873-6746 


Fax: (608) 873-5519 


dglynn@ci.stoughton.wi.us 


3.8 News Releases  
News releases pertaining to the award resulting from the RFPs shall not be made without prior written 
approval of the SPR Department.  


3.9 Disposition of Proposals 
All materials submitted in response to this RFP become the property of the City of Stoughton. One copy 
shall be retained for the official files of the Parks and Recreation Department and will become public 
record after award of the contract.  


3.10 Modification/Withdrawal of Proposals  
A respondent may withdraw a proposal at any time prior to the final submission date by sending written 
notification of its withdrawal, signed by an agent authorized to represent the agency. The respondent 
may thereafter submit a new or modified proposal prior to the final submission date. Modifications 
offered in any other manner, oral or written, will not be considered. A final proposal cannot be changed 
or withdrawn after the time designated for receipt, except for modifications requested by the City after 
the date of receipt and following oral presentations.  


3.11 Oral Change/Interpretation  
No oral change or interpretation of any provision contained in this RFP is valid whether issues at a pre-
proposal conference or otherwise. Written addenda will be issues when the City deems changes, 
clarifications, or amendments to proposal documents necessary.  


3.12 Late Submissions  
Proposals not received prior to the date and time specified will not be considered and will be returned 
unopened after recommendation of award.  


3.13 Rejection of Proposals  
The City of Stoughton reserves the right to reject any or all proposals, to waive irregularities and to 
accept that proposal which the city determines, in its sole discretion, is in the best interest of the City.  


Section 4 – Proposal and Submission Requirements  
To achieve a uniform review process and obtain the maximum degree of comparability, the proposals 
shall be organized in the manner specified below. Core content of the proposals shall not exceed five (5) 
pages in length (items A, B, C, and D in section 4.1 item 5 below). Supporting attachments (see section 



mailto:dglynn@ci.stoughton.wi.us





 


7 
 


4.1 item 6, below) to the proposal shall not exceed eight (8) total pages. Information in excess of those 
allowed will not be evaluated/scored. One page shall be interpreted as one side of single-spaced, typed, 
8 ½ inch by 11-inch sheet of paper with 1-inch margins. The typeface shall be of 12 font or greater.  


4.1 Proposal Narrative 
All proposal information shall be presented in a single bound volume that has been checked sufficiently 
to ensure completeness and accuracy of detail. Proposals that do not comply with the instructions in 
this RFP will not be accepted. It is mandatory that the proposal contains the following five (5) items and 
that it be presented in the following order: 


1. Cover 
2. Title Page (1 page) 
3. Letter of Transmittal (1 page) 
4. Table of Contents (1 page) 
5. Core Content (6 pages maximum) 


a. Recent Parks and Recreation Master Planning Experience 
b. Consultant Project Approach  
c. Key Project Personnel 
d. Past Project Performance 
e. Cost Proposals  
f. Staff Availability and Capability to Meet Deadlines  


6. Supporting Attachments (if necessary 8 pages maximum) 


Items 5 and 6 should be separated with either color-coded or tab-type dividers so the information may 
be quickly located.  


A. Title Page (1 Page) 


Show the RFP title being proposed on, the name of your firm, address, telephone number(s), name 
of contact person, and date. 


B. Letter of Transmittal (1 Page) 
a. Identify the RFP project for which the proposal has been prepared. 
b. Briefly state your firm’s understanding of the services to be performed and make a 


positive commitment to provide the services as specified. 
c. Provide the name(s) of the person(s) authorized to make representations for your firm, 


their titles, address, and telephone numbers.  
d. A corporate officer or other individual who has the authority to bind the firm must sign 


the letter. The name and title of the individual(s) signing the proposal must be clearly 
shown immediately below the signature.  


C. Table of Contents (1 Page) 
D. Details of Core Content (6 Pages Maximum) 


a. Recent Parks and Recreation Master Planning Experience  
Include as a part of your proposal a brief statement concerning the recent relevant 
experience of the persons from your firm and each sub-consultant who will be actively 
engaged in the proposed effort. Do not include firm experience unless individuals who 
will work on this project participated in that experience.  







 


8 
 


 
b. Consultant Work Approach 


The proposal must include a brief description of the proposer’s overall approach to 
master planning and any unique capabilities the firm can bring to the project. 
 
Also include information addressing how the proposer plans to provide project 
management, quality assurance, contract deliverables, budget and cost control, 
schedule control, and intern/external coordination for this project. 
 


c. Key Project Personnel 
It is recommended personnel have a thorough knowledge and understanding of parks 
and recreation operations and facilities to provide perspective related to master 
planning analysis and recommendations. 
 
Specific background information on key individuals who will be assigned to the project 
must be included. The background information on these individuals should emphasize 
their work experience relative to project requirements, current projects, and availability. 
The proposed key personnel must be the personnel assigned to the project. 
 
It is intended that personnel assigned will carry this project to conclusion. If for 
unforeseen reasons key personnel can no longer contribute to the discipline specialties 
for which the key personnel have been selected, the consultant may petition the project 
manager in writing within thirty (30) days of any changed of personnel that are included 
in this statement and the addition to the consultant’s staff of personnel who may 
contribute to the discipline specialties for which the key personnel has been selected.  
 
The City reserves the right to approve all personnel changes. The City also reserves the 
right to cancel any task request in effect should it determine that the proposed 
personnel is not available or assigned to the task order. 
 


d. Past Project Performance  
Information is to be provided on the firm’s performance on past projects (include City 
projects if applicable), in regards to the project management items identified. 
 
Provide the names, addresses, current telephone numbers, and a brief project 
description of three past or current clients who are able to comment on aspects of your 
work relevant to this proposal.  
 


e. Cost Proposals 
Please provide a cost proposal for Kettle Park West Outlot 1 Master Plan. Cost proposals 
should be detailed and reflective to what is outlined in the scope of work.  
 


f. Staff Availability and Capability to Meet Deadlines  







 


9 
 


Provide projected workload and timeline for staff to complete the project by May 31, 
2019. 
 
 


E. Supporting Attachments (8 Pages Maximum) 


Attach only information pertinent to the project being proposed on and that will provide reviewers 
clear and concise insights into your firm’s capabilities.  


Section 5 – Evaluation Criteria and Selection Process 
A committee of individuals representing the City of Stoughton will evaluate the proposals.  


The City of Stoughton reserves the right to award contract(s) based solely on the written proposals. The 
City also reserves the right to request oral interviews. The City reserves the right to request additional 
questions to be answered during the interviews, to determine which proposers will be interview, the 
format and content of the interviews, and to establish the maximum number of people who attend the 
interview from a proposer. The consultant’s project manager identified in the proposal will be required 
to attend a requested interview. By submitting a proposal, it is understood that the proposers may not 
change (add or delete) personnel for interviews from those listed in the proposals without written 
consent from the City. 


Section 6 – Contract Negotiation Process 
The City may invite such one or more proposers to enter into Contract negotiations with the City. The 
City reserves the right to terminate negotiations with any proposer. The City reserves the right to reject 
any and all proposals submitted. 


The successful firm shall meet with the City of Stoughton minimum commercial general liability 
insurance requirements of $1 million per claim and occurrence, shall provide a certificate of insurance 
demonstrating that the required policy of insurance is in effect, and shall provide an endorsement to the 
policy stating that the City of Stoughton is named as an additional insured party under the policy.  



















































B


4


:


L


1


2


B


4


:


L


1


4


B


4


:


L


1


0


B


6


:


L


6


B


6


:


L


1


1


B


6


:


L


4


B


6


:


L


1


B


6


:


L


5


B


6


:


L


8


B


6


:


L


9


B


6


:


L


7


B


1


0


:


L


6


B


6


:


L


1


0


B


6


:


L


2


B


3


:


L


2


B


4


:


L


3


B


4


:


L


1


B


4


:


L


9


B


3


:


L


3


B


3


:


L


1


B


3


:


L


7


B


3


:


L


8


B


3


:


L


6


B


3


:


L


5


B


3


:


L


4


B


6


:


L


1


3


B


4


:


L


7


B


4


:


L


8


B


4


:


L


2


B


4


:


L


5


B


6


:


L


3


B


1


1


:


L


9


B


1


1


:


L


8


B


1


1


:


L


6


B


1


1


:


L


5


B


1


1


:


L


3


B


1


1


:


L


7


B


1


1


:


L


4


B


1


1


:


L


2


B


1


0


:


L


5


B


1


0


:


L


3


B


1


0


:


L


1


B


1


0


:


L


7


B


1


0


:


L


4


B


1


0


:


L


8


B


4


:


L


1


3


B


4


:


L


6


B


4


:


L


4


B


6


:


L


1


2


B


3


:


L


3


B


4


:


L


1


1


B


3


:


L


7


B


3


:


L


8


B


3


:


L


6


B


3


:


L


5


B


3


:


L


4


B


1


1


:


L


1


B


1


1


:


L


1


0


B


1


0


:


L


2


O


A


K


 


O


P


E


N


I


N


G


 


D


R


I


V


E


J


A


C


K


S


O


N


 


S


T


R


E


E


T


T


E


L


E


M


A


R


K


 


T


R


A


I


L


A


L


P


I


N


E


 


R


U


N


J
A


C
K


S
O


N
 
S


T
R


E
E


T


T
E


L
E


M
A


R
K


 
T


R
A


I
L


O


A


K


 


O


P


E


N


I


N


G


 


D


R


I


V


E


A
L


P
I
N


E
 
R


U
N


OAK OPENING DRIVE


J
A


C
K


S
O


N
 
S


T
R


E
E


T


BOULDER LANE


O


S


L


O


 


R


U


N


TRYSIL ALLEY SOUTH


OVERALL FINISHED LOT


GRADING PLAN & SHEET


MAP


C4.0


MADISON REGIONAL OFFICE


161 HORIZON DRIVE, SUITE 101


VERONA, WISCONSIN 53593


P. 608.848.5060


MADISON  ▌MILWAUKEE


KENOSHA ▌APPLETON ▌WAUSAU


CREATE THE VISION


JSD PROJECT NO:


SHEET NUMBER:


SHEET TITLE:


Design/Drawn:


Approved:


PLAN MODIFICATIONS:


CLIENT:


PROJECT:


# Description:Date:


CLIENT ADDRESS:


PROJECT LOCATION:


1


2


3


4


5


6


7


8


9


10


11


12


13


14


15


161 HORIZON DRIVE, SUITE 101A


VERONA, WI 53508


THE MEADOWS AT 


KETTLE PARK WEST 


PHASE 2


CITY OF STOUGHTON, WI


DANE COUNTY


15-7018


REPLAT SUBMITTAL05.14.21


MSS


SJB


REPLAT RE-SUBMITTAL05.21.21


REPLAT FINAL PLAT08.02.21


REPLAT FINAL PLAT11.08.21


CITY COMMENT RESPONSE02.08.22


CITY COMMENT RESPONSE03.22.22


CITY COMMENT RESPONSE03.29.22


SEE SHEET C4.1


SEE SHEET C4.2


SEE SHEET C4.3


SEE SHEET C4.4


SEE SHEET C4.5



AutoCAD SHX Text

WET



AutoCAD SHX Text

WET



AutoCAD SHX Text

WET



AutoCAD SHX Text

WET



AutoCAD SHX Text

WET



AutoCAD SHX Text

WET



AutoCAD SHX Text

WET



AutoCAD SHX Text

WET



AutoCAD SHX Text

WET



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT 1 _____ 



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT 2 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT 3 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT 4 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT 6 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

OUTLOT 1 _______



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT 5 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT 16 _____ KETTLE PARK WEST ______________



AutoCAD SHX Text

OWNER: WAUNAKEE INVESTORS LLC KETTLE PARK STOUGHTON LLC



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT 1 _____ CSM No. 7803 __________



AutoCAD SHX Text

OWNER: GARY J DVORAK NANCY J DVORAK



AutoCAD SHX Text

OWNER: SHIRLEY A ERICKSON



AutoCAD SHX Text

OWNER: DAVID A NELSON



AutoCAD SHX Text

OWNER: DWIGHT E PAUTZ DEBRA M PAUTZ



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT 1 _____ CSM No. 8144 __________



AutoCAD SHX Text

OWNER: G & N LAND HOLDINGS LLC



AutoCAD SHX Text

OWNER: KUNES STOUGHTON UCL PROPERTY LLC



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT 4 _____ CSM No. 9632 __________



AutoCAD SHX Text

OWNER: KUNES STOUGHTON PROPERTY LLC



AutoCAD SHX Text

OWNER: KETTLE PARK WEST LLC



AutoCAD SHX Text

OWNER:	DAVID A DAVID A NELSON



AutoCAD SHX Text

OWNER: KETTLE PARK WEST LLC



AutoCAD SHX Text

B2:L1 ____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B9:L1 ____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B5:OL1 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B2:L4 ____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B2:L3 ____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B2:L2 ____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B9:L2 ____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B9:L3 ____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B9:L4 ____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B4:OL1 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B1:L27 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B1:OL2 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

KETTLE PARK WEST-THE MEADOWS ADDITION ________________________________



AutoCAD SHX Text

KETTLE PARK WEST-THE MEADOWS ADDITION _________________________________



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT 1 _____ CSM No. 15514 ___________



AutoCAD SHX Text

B3:0L1 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B7:L1 ____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B7:L10 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B7:L6 ____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B7:L5 ____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B7:L4 ____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B7:L3 ____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B7:L2 ____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B7:OL1 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B7:L9 ____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B7:L8 ____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B7:L7 ____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B8:OL1 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B7:L14 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B7:L11 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B7:L12 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B7:L13 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B8:L1 ____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B8:L10 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B8:L6 ____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B8:L5 ____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B8:L4 ____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B8:L3 ____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B8:L2 ____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B8:L9 ____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B8:L8 ____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B8:L7 ____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B8:L14 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B8:L11 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B8:L12 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B8:L13 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B2:OL1 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B2:OL2 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B1:OL1 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B1:L24 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B1:L1 ____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B1:L2 ____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B1:L3 ____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B1:L4 ____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B1:L5 ____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B1:L6 ____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B1:L7 ____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B1:L8 ____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B1:L9 ____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B1:L10 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B1:L11 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B1:L12 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B1:L13 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B1:L14 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B1:L15 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B1:L16 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B1:L17 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B1:L18 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B1:L19 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B1:L20 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B1:L21 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B1:L22 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B1:L23 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B2:L17 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B2:L18 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B2:L19 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B2:L20 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B2:L21 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B2:L22 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B2:L23 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B2:L24 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B2:L25 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B2:L26 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B2:L27 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B2:L28 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B2:L29 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B2:L30 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B2:L31 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B2:L32 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B2:L33 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B2:L34 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B2:L35 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B2:L36 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B2:L1 ____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B2:L2 ____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B2:L3 ____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B2:L4 ____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B2:L5 ____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B2:L6 ____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B2:L7 ____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B2:L8 ____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B2:L9 ____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B2:L10 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B2:L11 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B2:L12 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B2:L13 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B2:L14 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B2:L15 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B2:L16 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B1:L26 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B1:L25 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B2:L37 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B2:L38 _____



AutoCAD SHX Text

CITY OF STOUGHTON



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOWN OF RUTLAND



AutoCAD SHX Text

THE MEADOWS AT KETTLE PARK WEST ___________________________



AutoCAD SHX Text

OWNER: KETTLE PARK WEST LLC



AutoCAD SHX Text

B1:L1 ____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B1:L8 ____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B1:L7 ____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B1:L6 ____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B1:L5 ____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B1:L4 ____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B1:L3 ____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B1:L2 ____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B3:L1 ____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B3:L2 ____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B3:L3 ____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B3:L4 ____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B3:L5 ____



AutoCAD SHX Text

B3:L6 ____



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE IN FEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

100'



AutoCAD SHX Text

100'



AutoCAD SHX Text

TELL THE STORY



AutoCAD SHX Text

THESE PLANS AND DESIGNS ARE COPYRIGHT PROTECTED AND MAY NOT BE USED IN WHOLE OR IN PART WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF JSD PROFESSIONAL SERVICES, INC.



AutoCAD SHX Text

Toll Free (800) 242-8511



AutoCAD SHX Text

PHASE 2 GRADING LIMITS

























		REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS - Kettle Park West Master Plan

		Section 1 – General Information

		1.1 Purpose

		Park Master Plan and Cost Estimate



		1.2 General Submission Information

		1.3 Site Visits & Pre-Submittal Meeting

		1.4 Preparation Costs



		Section 2 – Scope of Work

		2.1 Project Scope

		Mandt Park Master Plan





		Section 3 – Anticipated Process

		3.1 Examination of Proposals

		3.2 Proposal Acceptance Period

		3.3 Confidentiality

		3.4 Proposal Format

		3.5 Signature Requirements

		3.6 Proposal Submission

		3.7 Questions

		3.8 News Releases

		3.9 Disposition of Proposals

		3.10 Modification/Withdrawal of Proposals

		3.11 Oral Change/Interpretation

		3.12 Late Submissions

		3.13 Rejection of Proposals



		Section 4 – Proposal and Submission Requirements

		4.1 Proposal Narrative



		Section 5 – Evaluation Criteria and Selection Process

		Section 6 – Contract Negotiation Process



		Kettle Park West-The Meadows Addition - Recorded Plat - Doc No. 5646490

		The Meadows at Kettle Park West - Recorded Plat - Doc No. 5646491

		Pages from 02 - 2022-03-29 Kettle Park West Final Sealed Plans - The Meadows KPW2






Director’s Report 
October 2022 


Riverfront Project 


- Met with the Army Corp of Engineers project managers to discuss our written response for the 
public comments.  


- Met with DNR staff to discuss and get clarification about the approval (permitting) process. 
While not required, they encouraged us to have a public meeting as part of the approval process 
to cover the final design. This will likely happen in December.  


- The team working on the project worked together and completed the written response for the 
Army Corp.  


Virgin Lake Trail 


- I met with Attorney Dregne regarding the easement for the trail and what he would need to 
draft the easement. I got the required information from Director Scheel and the condo 
association. There is an additional $2,000 cost for MSA to stake the easement area and provide 
the drawing and survey for the easement.  


51 West Master Plans  


- I reviewed the draft master plans and offered suggestions for edits. The next step in the 
planning process is a public meeting which is tentatively scheduled for November 2nd at 6:00 
pm.  


Kettle Park West Master Plan 


- I drafted a request for proposal for the work. I hope to send it out later this month and have a 
consultant onboard by January 1st. It takes about six months to complete a master plan. The 
timeline works well as Director Scheel thought the timeline for building that area of the 
development would occur in 2024. This gives us some flexibility for grading purposes.  


Recreation & Youth Center  


- We had our last movie in the park on September 23rd. Tony King and I setup and tore down the 
equipment. The following week we moved the equipment to the Public Works Facility and 
cleaned it prior to storing.  


Misc.  


- I met with the new Stoughton School Superintendent.  
- I walked the nature trails in Lowell Park with Alder Caravello.  
- I met with Cummins volunteers on September 28th regarding volunteer options for 2023.  
- I coordinated the Special Parks and Rec Committee meeting for October 5th. 
- I attended the City Council meeting on October 11th regarding the Norse Park dugouts.  
- I met with Attorney Dregne about reviewing the draft lease for the cell phone tower adjacent to 


the River Trail behind Kahl Plumbing.   
- Presented the CIP at the 9/22/22 Ad Hoc CIP Committee meeting.  
- Attended the 9/29/22 Ad Hock CIP Committee meeting. 
- Met with the Mayor and Finance Director about a couple of items I had in the CIP and if they 


should be in the operational budget or CIP.   







Director’s Report 
October 2022 


- Continued to work on the continuing education program through Indiana University.  








 
 
SPECIAL PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON  
Wednesday, October 5, 2022 at 4:30 pm  
 


Virtual Meeting Information: Join Zoom Meeting Virtual Option: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83225800613?pwd=OElqZlhSb1R0eFJpaEN6YmdNcHVvdz09 


 


 
Members Present: Regina Hirsch, Joyce Tikalsky, Frank Raff, Jim Brandt, Mayor Tim Swadley, and Parks 
& Recreation Director Dan Glynn  
 
Guest: Brett Hebert 
 
Meeting called to order at 4:49 pm.  
 
Norse Park Dugout Project & Approval of Developer’s Agreement Between Stoughton Area Baseball 
Association and the City 
Glynn shared the condition of the current dugouts and the details of the agreement between the City 
and Stoughton Area Baseball Association. Hebert shared information about the new dugouts including 
their design.  
 
Motion by Hirsch and seconded by Brandt to recommend to City Council to approve the project and enter 
into an agreement with Stoughton Area Baseball Association. Motion passed unanimously.  
 
Motion to adjourn by Brandt, seconded by Hirsch. 
Motion carried unanimously at 5:00 pm 








 
 
PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON  
Tuesday, September 20, 2022 at 6:00 pm  
 


In-Person Option: Stoughton Council Chambers (321 S. Fourth Street)  
 
Virtual Option: Join Zoom Meeting Virtual Option: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88211375350?pwd=QVZwZVExRERBSGIwUFNiMFlTVkN 
0QT09 


 


 
Members Present: Phil Caravello, Regina Hirsch, Joyce Tikalsky, Frank Raff, Ethan Scheiwe, Jim Brandt 
and Parks & Recreation Director Dan Glynn  
 
Guest: None 
 
Meeting called to order at 6:00 pm.  
 
Approval of Minutes from August 16, 2022  
Motion by Caravello to approve the minutes from July 19, 2022 as presented, seconded by Scheiwe. 
Motion carried unanimously 
 
Communication-none 
Directors Report-Director Glynn shared updates from the Director’s Report.   
 
Park Design Guidelines 
Discussion centered on the point system and the criteria. The committee suggested a few edits to have 
conformity in the document. 
 
No action taken 
 
Norse Park Baseball Diamond Dugout Project 
Item tabled  
 
Future Agenda Items 
 
River Park Final Design 
Park Design Guidelines 
TIF Discussion  
Bike & Pedestrian Survey Results 
 
Motion to adjourn by Brandt, seconded by Caravello. 
Motion carried unanimously at 7:02 pm 








 


1 
 


 


 


 


City of Stoughton 


Park Design Guidelines 


Updated 8-1710-13-22 
  







 


2 
 


Contents 
Overview ................................................................................................................................................. 4 


Purpose ............................................................................................................................................... 4 


Mission Statement............................................................................................................................... 4 


Goals ................................................................................................................................................... 4 


General Planning and Design Policies....................................................................................................... 4 


Site Selection and Planning Principles ...................................................................................................... 5 


Park Design and Development Guidelines ................................................................................................ 5 


Community Parks ................................................................................................................................ 6 


Description ...................................................................................................................................... 6 


Site Selection & Development Guidelines ........................................................................................ 6 


Features & Amenities to Consider .................................................................................................... 6 


Features & Amenities to Avoid ......................................................................................................... 7 


Neighborhood Parks ............................................................................................................................ 7 


Description ...................................................................................................................................... 7 


Site Selection & Development Guidelines ........................................................................................ 7 


Features & Amenities to Consider .................................................................................................... 7 


Features & Amenities to Avoid ......................................................................................................... 8 


Mini Parks ........................................................................................................................................... 8 


Description ...................................................................................................................................... 8 


Site Selection & Development Guidelines ........................................................................................ 8 


Features & Amenities to Consider .................................................................................................... 8 


Features & Amenities to Avoid ......................................................................................................... 8 


Special-Use Parks ................................................................................................................................. 8 


Description ...................................................................................................................................... 8 


Site Selection & Development Guidelines ........................................................................................ 8 


Features & Amenities to Consider .................................................................................................... 9 


Features & Amenities to Avoid ......................................................................................................... 9 


Trail Corridors & Greenways ................................................................................................................ 9 


Description ...................................................................................................................................... 9 


Site Selection & Development Guidelines ........................................................................................ 9 


Features & Amenities to Consider .................................................................................................... 9 


Features & Amenities to Avoid ....................................................................................................... 10 







 


3 
 


Natural Areas .................................................................................................................................... 10 


Description .................................................................................................................................... 10 


Site Selection & Development Guidelines ...................................................................................... 10 


Features and Amenities to Consider ............................................................................................... 10 


Features and Amenities to Avoid ................................................................................................... 11 


Guidance for Developers ....................................................................................................................... 11 


Design and Review Process for City Parks .......................................................................................... 11 


Site Evaluation Report ....................................................................................................................... 13 


Site Selection Criteria Rating and Weighting ...................................................................................... 14 


Minimum Criteria .......................................................................................................................... 14 


Base Criteria .................................................................................................................................. 15 


Bonus Criteria ................................................................................................................................ 16 


 


  


  







 


4 
 


Overview  
Purpose 
The purpose of this document is to provide direction to staff, landscape architects, contractors and 
developers in the design, construction, and maintenance of public parks, open space, trails, and 
recreation facilities in the City of Stoughton. The guidelines will be used as a tool in evaluating 
submittals for all new parks and any significant changes to parks.  


Only improvements where Stoughton Parks and Recreation and/or Stoughton Public Works will assume 
operations and maintenance activities are subject to these guidelines.   


Mission Statement  
The City of Stoughton seeks to provide a park and recreation system that will: meet the needs of our 
current residents and future generations; preserve and protect the City’s open space, water, historical 
and natural resources; and provide a park and recreation program that is designed to enhance our 
quality of life.  


Goals 
• Provide guidance to developers for park site selection and development 
• Create a standard for parks, park equipment, and amenities 


General Planning and Design Policies 
The following policies are intended to provide guidance on the planning and design of all parks and 
recreation facilities in Stoughton: 


• Incorporate public input into park master planning and design to ensure that community needs 
and issues are addressed. Public outreach should include nearby neighbors, likely park users, 
community members, and partner agencies in the park design process. 


• Involve maintenance and recreation program staff in the design process so that maintenance 
and programming requirements are considered during site selection, design, and development. 


• Consider the layout of the surrounding neighborhood when placing park amenities. Situate 
lighting and noise-producing amenities away from the neighboring homes to minimize conflicts.  


• Locate amenities such as playground equipment, picnic shelters, and basketball courts to 
provide visibility from adjoining streets which will promote safety, minimize vandalism, and 
encourage use.  


• Incorporate American with Disabilities Act Accessibility Guidelines into all new parks to facilitate 
site access, circulation, and facility use for people of all ages and abilities.  


• Incorporate new technologies, sustainable design, and conservation-smart elements into all 
park and recreation facility designs to facilitate operational efficiency. This commitment may be 
demonstrated through the use of green building technologies, alternative power, low water-use 
fixtures, automated sport field lighting, and storm water treatment techniques. 


• Incorporate public art and interpretive elements into parks to contribute to park identity and 
character. Interpretative elements can be incorporated into parks of all types to raise 
community awareness about the local environment and history. Art elements are well-suited for 
community parks, citywide parks, urban open space, or other community-serving areas. 







 


5 
 


• Conduct a cost impact analysis prior to design and development of all new major recreation 
facilities. 


Site Selection and Planning Principles  
Consistency  


Choose park and trail locations that are consistent with the spirit and intent of the Department’s 
Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan, with the City’s Comprehensive Plan, and with other policies 
and plans adopted by City Council.  


Environmental Protection  


Locate parks and open spaces in coordination with surrounding new developments, where reasonable, 
to preserve and protect the water quality and wildlife habitat of riparian corridors, wetlands, and flood 
plains and to integrate preserved open space and natural areas into developed areas for both visual 
diversity and the definition of neighborhood character. Protect and enhance natural resources that have 
outstanding recreation, conservation and educational value to the public.  


Accessibility and Connectivity  


Connections are the key to creating an open space system that integrates all parts of the city into a 
cohesive whole. Benefits of trail development range from the preservation of linear open spaces to the 
promotion of active, healthy lifestyles to the creation of an alternative corridor for transportation. 
Ideally, parks and open space should be physically connected to provide continuous ribbons of green 
space woven throughout the city, maximizing value to wildlife and, where appropriate, to commuters 
and recreational users.  


1. Residents should be able to leave their homes and readily access the parks and open space 
system in their neighborhoods 


2. Design bicycle and pedestrian transportation systems for efficiency and connectivity around all 
parks and open spaces.  


Park Design and Development Guidelines  
Park design and development guidelines are provided for each park classification. These guidelines 
include the following for each classification: 


Description 


A definition is presented to describe each park type. This section also describes the typical length of use 
and means of travel to each type of park. 


Site Selection & Development Guidelines 


Include recommendations for site size, site access, street frontage, parking, etc. 


Features & Amenities to Consider 


These elements should be considered during the master planning and design process for inclusion in all 
new parks of this classification.  







 


6 
 


Features and Amenities to Consider and Avoid 


These elements are not compatible with the park classification and should not be included in the design 
and development of these types of parks.  


 


Community Parks  
Description 
Community parks are areas of diverse recreational activity and serve several neighborhoods. Community 
parks are typically 10 acres or larger but may vary depending on facilities offered.  


Typical community park users: 


• Come from within 1 to 2 miles of the park; 
• Arrive by auto, bicycle, or foot; and  
• Visit the park for 1 to 3 hours 


Site Selection & Development Guidelines 
• At least two-thirds of the site should be available for active recreation use. Adequate buffers or 


natural open space areas should separate active recreation use from homes.  
• The site should be visible from adjoining streets and have a minimum of 50% of street frontage. 
• Parking requirements should be based upon the facilities provided at the site. Generally, 50 off-


street spaces per ballfield are required, plus an additional 5 spaces per acre of active use areas.  
• Access to the site should be provided via a collector or arterial street with sidewalks and bicycle 


lanes, and trail corridor or greenway system when possible.   


Features & Amenities to Consider 
• Playgrounds  
• Open turf area for unstructured play 
• Designated sports fields for baseball, softball, and soccer. Fields may be in a complex within the 


park.  
• Looped pathway system 
• Large picnic shelters 
• Permanent restrooms  
• Tennis and Pickleball courts. Courts may be in a complex within the park.  
• Basketball courts 
• Field lighting 
• Skate park 
• Splash pad  
• Off-leash dog area 
• Community gardens  
• Concessions or vendor space  
• Interpretive signage 
• Public art 
• Indoor recreation center 







 


7 
 


• Landscape improvements including tree planting  
• Storage or maintenance buildings; if visible, these should be architecturally compatible with 


other park elements. Any exterior work areas should be screened from view.  
• Off-Street Parking  


Features & Amenities to Avoid 
• N/A 


 


Neighborhood Parks  
Description 
Neighborhood parks serve a variety of age groups within a limited area or neighborhood. Neighborhood 
parks typically include areas for active recreational use such as field or court games and playgrounds. 
Typical size is between 3 to 10 acres. 


Site Selection & Development Guidelines 
• At least 50% of site should be relatively level and usable providing space for both active and 


passive uses.  
• The site should be visible from adjoining streets and have a minimum of 50% of street frontage. 
• Access to the site should be provided via local street with sidewalks and trail corridor/greenway 


system when possible. Neighborhood parks fronting on arterial streets should be discouraged.  
• On-street parking should be provided. Larger sites may include off-street parking with the 


amount depending on the facilities provided at the site.  
• Active and noise producing facilities, such as basketball courts, should be located at least 100 


feet from nearby homes or property zoned for residential use.  
• Each neighborhood is different and some consideration to making neighborhood parks different 


is important.  


Features & Amenities to Consider 
• Playgrounds  
• Open turf area for unstructured play 
• Basketball (full or half) court 
• Volleyball court 
• Multi-use fields for practice  
• Picnic tables 
• Small picnic shelter  
• Pathway connecting park elements  
• Interpretive signage  
• Natural area (if present at site) 
• Portable or permanent restrooms  
• Landscape improvements including tree planting  
• On-street parking 


 







 


8 
 


Features & Amenities to Avoid 
• Horticulture or annual plantings unless sponsored and maintained by a neighborhood or 


community group 
• Indoor recreation center  
• Wading pools and similar types of amenities that require staff supervision or highly specialized 


maintenance  
• Sports fields for league play  
• Off-street parking  


 


Mini Parks  
Description 
Mini parks are used to address limited, isolated, or unique recreation needs of concentrated populations 
such as tots or senior citizens. Typical size is 1 acre or less but parks may be categorized as mini parks 
simply based on the type and quantity of facilities they offer.  


Site Selection & Development Guidelines 
• All or most of site should be relatively level providing space for both active and passive uses.  
• The site should have at least 25% of park boundary on street frontage.  
• Access to the site should be provided via local street with sidewalks.  


Features & Amenities to Consider 
• Open air shelter or small event space 
• Children’s playground including specialized play equipment such as tot lots  
• Half basketball court  
• Community garden 
• Landscape improvements including tree planting  


Features & Amenities to Avoid 
• Off-street parking 
• Permanent restrooms  


 


Special-Use Parks  
Description  
Special use parks are areas for specialized or single purpose recreational activities such as golf courses, 
campgrounds, nature centers, and skate parks. They may also be used to designate areas that are 
primarily used as event space, general gathering areas, expanded trail corridors, or plaza space. There 
are no set standards for size.  


Site Selection & Development Guidelines  
• Site size depends on intended use, but should be sufficient to accommodate the special use and 


necessary support facilities.  
• Access to the site should generally be provided by means of a collector arterial street.  







 


9 
 


• The site should connect to trail corridors if possible 


Features & Amenities to Consider 
• Special use facility or facilities  
• Portable or permanent restrooms (depending on facilities and anticipated amount of site use) 
• Landscape improvements including tree planting  
• On-street or off-street parking  
• Pathway system 
• Seating  


Features & Amenities to Avoid  
• Uses that conflict or detract from the special use 


 


Trail Corridors & Greenways  
Description 
Trail corridors and greenways include developed, landscaped corridors and more natural, less-
developed greenways that follow linear features such as abandoned railroad rights-of-way, canals, 
power lines, creeks and streams, and other elongated features. 


Typical trail and greenway users: 


• May come from throughout the city; 
• Arrive by auto, bicycle, or foot; 
• May use the trail and greenway to travel to a park or other community site; and  
• May visit the trail for one or more hours 


Site Selection & Development Guidelines 
• Trail corridors should generally follow continuous special feature strips, with a minimum 


corridor width of 50 feet. 
• Trail corridors should link to and be incorporated to neighborhood and community parks to 


provide a linear park system.  
• Trail corridors should link to regional trail systems.  
• Due to the shape, configuration, and potential for user noise in these parks, user impacts on 


adjoining neighbors should be considered. Fences or landscaping may be used to provide some 
privacy for neighbors, but the provision of these features also should consider user safety.  


• Paved pathways should be designed to accommodate maintenance and patrol vehicles.  
• The amount and type (on-street or off-street) of parking provided at trailheads will depend on 


facilities at the site and anticipated trail use.  


Features & Amenities to Consider 
• Paved pathways 
• Viewpoints 
• Seating areas 
• Picnic tables 







 


10 
 


• Wayfinding signage 
• Trailhead or entry kiosk  
• Landscaped areas, ornamental plantings, turf areas 
• Maintained natural vegetation 
• Fences, landscaping, or other features to control access near adjoining residential areas 
• Parking at major trailheads  


Features & Amenities to Avoid 
• Active use facilities such as sport fields and paved courts (only in trail corridor areas) 


Natural Areas 
Description  
Natural areas may preserve or protect environmentally sensitive areas, such as wildlife habitats, stream 
and creek corridors, or unique and/or endangered plant species. Public access may be limited as these 
sites, whichte often include wetlands, steep hillsides, or other similar spaces. Some natural areas may be 
managed secondarily to provide passive recreation opportunities.  


Typical recreation user of natural areas: 


• Comes from throughout the city; 
• Arrives by auto, bicycle, or foot; 
• Uses a trail within the natural area; and  
• Visits the area for an extended time 


Site Selection & Development Guidelines 
• Site size should be based on natural resource needs. Acreage should be sufficient to preserve or 


protect the resource.  
• Emphasis for acquisition should be on lands offering unique features that have the potential to 


be lost to development. 
• An analysis should be made to determine if unique qualities and conditions exist to warrant 


acquisition.  
• Development and site improvements should be kept to a minimum, keeping the park’s emphasis 


on the natural environment, interpretive features, and educational facilities. 
• Natural open space areas should be managed and maintained for a sense of solitude, 


separation, or environmental protection.  
• Site use should be limited to the numbers and types of visitors the area can accommodate while 


still retaining its natural character and the intended level of solitude.  
• Where feasible, public access and use of these areas should be encouraged, but environmentally 


sensitive areas should be protected from overuse.  
• Off-street parking should be considered for larger natural areas if a trail is located within the 


site. The amount will depend upon the anticipated trail use. Otherwise, on-street parking should 
be provided.  


Features and Amenities to Consider 
• Interpretive signage 







 


11 
 


• Small picnic shelter 
• Limited picnic areas 
• Trail and pathway system  
• Trailhead or entry kiosk 
• Viewpoints 
• Interpretive or education facilities  
• Portable or permanent restrooms (depending on facilities and anticipated amount of site use) 
• On-street or off-street parking (depending on anticipated amount of site use) 


Features and Amenities to Avoid 
• Depends on site 


Guidance for Developers 
Sustainable communities include parks and open spaces where residents and visitors can enjoy 
recreation, connect with nature, and gather with neighbors. Thanks to the foresight of and vision of 
community leaders, citizens, and land developers, Stoughton boasts an extensive park system. To 
continue with this standard, a parkland dedication is required for developments.  


The City depends on neighborhood and community parks to meet the recreational needs of its citizens. 
Land development should meet the needs of the residents. These classes of parks are dedicated when 
land is developed and are the basis of the sections below.  


Design and Review Process for City Parks 
The process described below is the typical sequence of reviews conducted with the City of Stoughton’s 
Director of Parks & Recreation and the consultant. This process encompasses the majority of projects 
and will serve as a general framework for providing direction regarding the specifics of the design and 
construction documents. The outline below is the basic format and can be adapted as needed for special 
case scenarios. Private sector development, renovation, or special use areas should follow this process 
to the closest extent possible. Other services and procedures may be required depending on the scope 
of the project.  


Nothing in this document shall be construed as a requirement or endorsement for the consultant to 
provide services for whichite they are not qualified or appropriately licensed. The consultant shall 
exercise their professional judgement regarding design specifics. All projects shall conform to local, 
state, and federal codes, laws, and ordinances.  


1. Scoping/Programming Meeting  
 
This meeting will occur during the scoping phase, and prior to the execution of a consultant’s 
conceptual plan for the development is completed. The Parks and Recreation Director will 
convey the needs outlined in the city’s Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan, city’s 
Comprehensive Plan, county’s Park and Open Space Plan, and other relevant plans. The City will 
also provide any available information regarding site selection criteria and the Site Evaluation 
Report.  
 


2. Site Selection Review  







 


12 
 


 
The consultant will prepare the Site Evaluation Report for this meeting with the Parks and 
Recreation Director. The intent at this time will be to review possible site selections for the 
parkland within the development. These conceptual plans will be sketch quality, fairly abstract 
diagrams that demonstrate the location, arrangement, size and spacing of the park. The 
intention is to identify the opportunities and constraints of various layouts. Once a site is 
selected, it will need to be approved by the Parks & Recreation Committee.  
 


3. Park Master Plan Review  
 
The consultant will prepare schematic design drawings which will setup the preliminary 
arrangement of programmatic and physical components, including hardscape elements, 
accessibility, circulation, drainage, grades and slopes, planting scheme, furnishings, and play 
equipment. This is intended to be a collaborative process and based on the complexity of the 
project, there may be several iterations of schematic design solutions. The reviews may include 
sketch quality drawings or hardline drawings.  
 
Once a schematic design is resolved, the consultant shall prepare a final line drawing. If the 
project scope includes a public meeting, the consultant will prepare rendered presentation 
graphics. A budget work sheet with realistic cost estimates for any site improvements must be 
included with the plan. All Park Master Plans must be adopted by City Council. 
 


4. Design Development/30% & 60% Construction Documents  
 
The consultant will prepare a set of drawings that will create the framework for the final 
drawings and that start filling in the specifics of the design. A meeting will be held to review the 
progress of the 30% and 60% construction drawings, and will ascertain that the schedule and 
budget of the project is on track, the intent of the design is being followed, and any issues are 
being remedied.   


 


5. 90% Construction Documents  
The consultant will prepare and submit a set of construction drawings to the 90% complete 
stage. The drawings shall be prepared to a level that is considered biddable and buildable. A 
meeting will be held to review the submittal to ascertain that all details and specifications 
required are included in the drawings. This will allow the City to identify any particulars that 
need clarification or correction.  
 
A preliminary cost estimate shall also be prepared by the consultant at this stage.  
 
If the project will be publicly bid, the consultant shall prepare and submit a contract manual and 
associated bidding documents to the Parks and Recreation Director.  
  


6. Final Documents for Construction Documents and Pricing/Bidding  


Commented [DG1]: The planning process for new parks 
has not had approved Master Plan reports in the past. They 
have been conceptual plans without City Council approval. 


Commented [DG2]: This is needed and was not done 
when Nordic Ridge Park was developed.  


Commented [DG3]:  







 


13 
 


After approval of the 90% plans, specifications and estimate, the consultant will prepare and 
submit final construction documents.  


 
The consultant will coordinate the distribution of plan sets, participate in the pre-bid meeting, 
review the bids, prepare a bid tabulation, and a recommendation of award, and verify the 
contract and agreement documents.  
 


7. Pre-Construction Meeting  
 
Prior to the start of construction, all parties will meet to review the specifics of the construction 
process including the schedule for construction.  


 
 
Site Evaluation Report 
Once a site within a development is selected by the developer for the parkland dedication, the 
developer should prepare a site evaluation report. The report shall include and follow the following 
format: 


1. Title Page  
 


2. Executive Summary  


The executive summary summarizes the type and size of the planned park; briefly describes the 
sites; iIndicatesd which site was selected and the rationale for choosing the selected site.  


3. Site Selection Process 


Explains the site selection criteria and the criteria rating and weighting schemes. Include the 
following graphics in this section: 


o Context map showing site(s) and its immediate surroundings 
o Location map showing all of the sites that were considered and key landmarks or 


reference points such as major streets 
o Aerial photography of each site 
o Photographic panoramas  
o Site topographic map  


 
4. Comparative Evaluation of Candidate Sites 


Describe the strengths and weaknesses of each individual site. Include the following graphics: 


o Site evaluation matrix  
o Tabulated data summarizing the individual site evaluations allowing for comparison 


among the alternative sites 
 


5. Conclusion  







 


14 
 


Briefly summarize the site selected, process used, and determination. If minimum  base criteria 
is not met, then it should be explained why they are not attainable in this section.  


6. References 


Site Selection Criteria Rating and Weighting  
This site selection process is used for the continuing acquisition of open space for new parks and public 
recreation areas. The Minimum Criteria must be met to be considered for further evaluation. 
Additionally, it is strongly recommended that the minimums in each category for the Base Criteria in the 
weighting system be met for an approvable site. The Parks & Recreation Committee will use the 
weighting system to assist in determining if the site is appropriate for a park.  


Minimum Criteria  
All sites must meet all of the minimum “base” or threshold criteria listed below to be considered for 
further evaluation. This step ensures the sites meet at least the minimum standards for: 


Site Size 


The minimum land dedication must provide 90% of the land required per the parkland dedication 
requirement. Trail corridors are counted towards the parkland dedication requirement. Storm water 
retention ponds located within a park do not count towards the land dedication.  


Slopes 


Land dedicated for parkland shall have areas with slopes of 5% or less in 10% of the parkland for a 
neighborhood park and/or community park. Land can be graded by the developer to provide less slope. 
The area with slopes less than 5% must be adjacent to a public roadway.  


Contiguous Land  


Land shall be dedicated in a contiguous parcel. An exception to this is if the development is fragmented 
by an arterial street, highway, or railroad.  


Frontage  


Should be fronted on 50% of border by streets, public areas, and/or undeveloped land with no rear 
residential lots adjacent to the park.  


Existing Conditions  


The site shall not be encumbered by overhead utility lines, easements of any type, unstable soils, 
floodplains, wetlands, or toxic conditions which may limit the opportunity for park and recreation 
development.  


Pedestrian and Bikeway Connectivity  


Parks and other major points of interests such as schools should be connected by an off-road trail 
corridor. The City’s Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan conceptually outlines trail routes and 
should be taken into consideration when planning routes. Regional trail connections shall be protected 
and be incorporated into the park layout when necessary. The regional trail map can be found in Dane 
County’s Parks & Open Space Plan.   


Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", First line:  0"


Commented [DG4]: This will help staff and alderpersons 
judge parkland dedication for developments.  


Formatted: Highlight


Commented [DG5]: Updated to reflect the discussion 
from September’s meeting.  


Commented [DG6]: Deleted to avoid confusion as there 
is a base criteria in the point system. 


Commented [DG7]: What is the acceptable amount? 
Developers may need some flexibility for their development 
to work and they are required to pay the park fee in lieu of.  


Commented [DG8]: Slopes of 5% or less allow for ADA 
accessibility which is needed for programmed features of 
the park such as restrooms, playgrounds, and sport courts.  


Commented [DG9]: I changed the wording for this too.  







 


15 
 


 
Dedication Percent  


Base Criteria  
Dedication Percent (30 Points) 


90 percent of parkland dedication is fulfilled = 5 point  


91-99 percent of parkland dedication is fulfilled = 15 points 


100 percent of parkland dedication is fulfilled = 30 points 


91-99 percent of parkland dedication is fulfilled = 15 points 


90 percent of parkland dedication is fulfilled = 5 point  


 


Slopes (15 points)  


Slopes of 5% or less in 50% or more of the parkland for a neighborhood park and/or a community park 
are met = 15 points 


Slopes of 5% or less in 25-49% of the parkland for a neighborhood park and/or a community park are 
met = 10 points 


Slopes of 5% or less in 10-24% of the parkland for a neighborhood and/or a community park are met = 5 
points 


Frontages (25 points) 


80-100% of frontage border are public streets, public areas, and/or undeveloped land with no rear 
residential lots adjacent to the park = 25 points  


60-79% of frontage border are public streets, public areas, and/or undeveloped land with no rear 
residential lots adjacent to the park = 15 points  


50-59% of frontage border are public streets, public areas, and/or undeveloped land with no rear 
residential lots adjacent to the park = 5 points  


 


Connectivity (30 points) 


Park is connected to other parks with off-road trail = 5 point 


Park is connected with 50-75-foot-wide off-road trail corridor with vegetation = 15 points 


Park is connected with a 75+ foot wide off-road trail corridor with vegetation = 30 points  


Park is connected with 50-75-foot-wide off-road trail corridor with vegetation = 15 points 


Park is connected to other parks with off-road trail = 5 point 


Formatted: Font: Bold


Formatted: Normal







 


16 
 


 


Bonus Criteria 
Historical or cultural resources on-site = 10 points 


Relatively undisturbed sites supporting significant and diverse plant and wildlife habitat = 10 points 


Park size is over 10 acres = 5 points 


Park can be expanded with future development = 5 points  


Historical or cultural resources on-site = 10 points 


Relatively undisturbed sites supporting significant and diverse plant and wildlife habitat = 10 points 


Waterfront access = 5 points  


Healthy, established, mature, and non-invasive trees = 5 points   


Land dedication is over the parkland dedication requirement by 10% = 5 points  


 


 


 


Commented [DG10]: This will need to be discussed and 
refined 





		Overview

		Purpose

		Mission Statement

		Goals



		General Planning and Design Policies

		Site Selection and Planning Principles

		Park Design and Development Guidelines

		Community Parks

		Description

		Site Selection & Development Guidelines

		Features & Amenities to Consider

		Features & Amenities to Avoid



		Neighborhood Parks

		Description

		Site Selection & Development Guidelines

		Features & Amenities to Consider

		Features & Amenities to Avoid



		Mini Parks

		Description

		Site Selection & Development Guidelines

		Features & Amenities to Consider

		Features & Amenities to Avoid



		Special-Use Parks

		Description

		Site Selection & Development Guidelines

		Features & Amenities to Consider

		Features & Amenities to Avoid



		Trail Corridors & Greenways

		Description

		Site Selection & Development Guidelines

		Features & Amenities to Consider

		Features & Amenities to Avoid



		Natural Areas

		Description

		Site Selection & Development Guidelines

		Features and Amenities to Consider

		Features and Amenities to Avoid





		Guidance for Developers

		Design and Review Process for City Parks

		Site Evaluation Report

		Site Selection Criteria Rating and Weighting

		Minimum Criteria

		Base Criteria

		Bonus Criteria










 


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA  
Notice is hereby given that the Parks and Recreation Committee of the City of Stoughton, 
Wisconsin will hold a regular or special meeting as indicated on the date, time and location 
given below. 


 


Meeting of the: 
Date /Time: 
Location: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Members: 
 
 
CC:   


PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 
Tuesday, October 18, 2022 at 6:00 pm 
This is a hybrid meeting with the option of meeting virtually and in-person. Please 
use the information below to attend:  
 
In-Person Option:  
 
Stoughton Council Chambers (321 S. Fourth Street) 
 
Virtual Option: 
 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85792117248?pwd=a09vcVRacTdWUkl4UkxFR2grcTllZz
09  
 
Meeting ID: 857 9211 7248 
Passcode: 628962 
One tap mobile 
+13126266799,,85792117248#,,,,*628962# US (Chicago) 
+16469313860,,85792117248#,,,,*628962# US 
 
Dial by your location 
        +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
Meeting ID: 857 9211 7248 
Passcode: 628962 
Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kyVcSXX19  


   
Regina Hirsch, Phil Caravello, Frank Raff, Joyce Tikalsky, Jim Brandt, Ethan Scheiwe,  
Tim Swadley 


 
Attorney Matt Dregne, Department Heads, Stoughton Newspapers,  
Deb Waterstone, Sue Strandlie , Sarah Monette, Jon Lewis, Bob Diebel, Council 
Members 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 


 
 


 
Item #   CALL TO ORDER 
1   Call to Order    



https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85792117248?pwd=a09vcVRacTdWUkl4UkxFR2grcTllZz09

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85792117248?pwd=a09vcVRacTdWUkl4UkxFR2grcTllZz09

https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kyVcSXX19





 
2 Approval of Minutes from September 20, 2022 
 
3 Approval of Minutes from October 5, 2022 
 
4 Communications 
 Member Communications 
 Director’s Report  
 Bike & Pedestrian Survey Preliminary Findings   
 
Item #   OLD BUSINESS     
5   Park Design Guidelines (Discussion & Action) 
    
Item #   NEW BUSINESS      
6   Kettle Park West Park Master Plan Requests for Proposals (Discussion) 
 
7   Future Agenda Items 
   River Park Final Design  
   51 West Outlot 6 and 3 Master Plan    
 
Item #   ADJOURNMENT  





